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1. ELECTION PETITION NO. ,7(0) OF 1989 

No. I(AB) OF 1991 
Saingura 

-versus-
F. Sapa and others 

Petitioner 

Respondents 



2, 

3. 

4. 

5. 

6. 

7. 

8. 

9/95 
� 

ELECTION PETITION 

H. Lalruata 
....l.ve.·st.lS " ,' , 7:" �o 

Vtmlalng1d<a .iltl!! <lthcrs 
., . 

ELECTION PETITION 1')0.9(Gl . . . 
---- ----

,;2 

OF 

Of 

No. 3{AB) OF 

Lalhlimpuii 
-verslIs-

Rosangliana and others 

ELECnON PETITION No.IO(G) OF 
----------

No.4(AB) OF 

Lianhmingthanga 
-vcrSlIs-

Lalthanhtnvla and others 

ELECTION PETITION No. 11(0) OF 

No. S(AB) OF 

Zonunthara 
-verslIs-

Vaivenga and others 

ELECTION PETITiON No. 12(0) OF 

No. 6(AB) OF 

T.Rozama 
-verslIs-

Zalawma and others 

ELECTION PETITiON No. 13(0) OF 

No.7(AB) OF 
Ramnundanga 

-versus-
Andrew Lalherliana and others 

ELECTION PETITION No. 14(G) OF 

No. S(AB) OF 

J.Kapthianga 
-versus-

C.L.Ruala and others 

, �Wi" � � "C-") 

� ,,',I ':!, ' . �' 
1989 , 

1991 
PehJ.ioner 

• • 
�spondet!� " 

1989 

)991 
Pet itioner 

Respondelll'-, 

1989 

1991 
Petitioner 

Respondent:. 

1989 

1991 • 

Petitioner 
• 

• 

• 

Respondent:. 

1989 

1991 
Petitioner 

Responden15 

19&9 

1991 
Petitioner 

Respondents • 

1989 • 

1991 
Petitioner 

Respondents 



3� <'E�"-89f95 

9. ELECTrON PETlTION No.15(ofOF �89 ,;Fi 
'- ' ., : 1:: " -I' : , 

----------

No.9(i\B) OF .1991 
B.Lalthlengliana •• p_etitioner 

• • -·'.'':'fStJS- • 

Liansua rna and others Reipondcnts 

10. ELECT.ON PETITI:JN No. 16(G) OF 1989 
�---- --- ---� 

No. IO(AB)OF 1991 
Lalthankaia Petitioner 

-Ycrsus-
Lalbiaka and others Respondents 

II. ELECTION PETITION No.17(G) OF 1989 
--------

No.II(AB)OF 1991 
Hrangthansallga Pctjtioner" 

--Ycrsus-
Saikapthianga and others Respondents 

12. ELECTION PETITION No.18(O) OF 1989 
----• No.12(AB)OF 1991 · 

• F.Aithanga Petitioner 
,-versus -

• Lalthanhawla and others Respondents 

13. ELECTION PETITION No.I9(G) OF 1989 
--- -

No.13(AII)OF 1991 
S.Lianzuala PetitiornU" 

-versus-' 
Zoramsangliana and others ReSj'lot/denls 

14. ELECTION PETITION No.20(G} OF 198'1 

No.I4(AB)OF t9CJI 
L. Ngurchhina Petitioner 

-versus-

• 
Rokam.lo.va and others RespondeRts 

15. ELECTION PETITION NQ.21(G) OF 1989 • 

No. I 5(AB)Of' t�l 
1(. Lalromana. Pei.itiQAer 

........ versQs� 
Lallmtha_ aad o�s. Respondeats 



Ex-89/95 

For the petitioners 

For the respondents 

Mr A.K.Bhattacharyya, 
MrA.K. Das, 
Mr K. Agarwal. 

Mr. A.M.Mazumdar, 
Mr S.S. Dey, • • 

Dates of hearing 

Date of judgment 

Mr K.P. Pathak, 
MrM. Nath 

4. lO.93, 5.lO.93, 6.10.93, 7.10.93, 8.10.93. 
22.11.93, 23.11.93, 24.11.93, 25.11.93, 
30.11.93, 14.12. 93, 15.12.93 & 16.12.93. 

the 15th July, 1994. 

JUDGMENT AND ORDER 

All these above i5 ekction petitions have t.een fi1cc' on common gro1.lTIds, i.e. 
corrupt practice. The facts of all these election petitio\i" arc similar. Therefore, 
I propose to take up all these petitions and dispose then-, uf by a common judgment. 
The grounds of attack in the petitions are that the fClurl.cd candidate, namciy, the 
1st respondent in each petition had indulged in anti \\c.(; gUJlty of corrupl practice. 
The 15 election petitions had been filed in this Court on : he same day, i.e. on March 
9, 1989. 

2. The facts of the case may be stated as follows : • 

Mizoram, a tiny hmy State, situated in the �xtrclr<' corner of North Eastern 
Region of the Country. Mizoram attained statehood in �hv month c·f February 1987. 
Two years thereafter, the elections were held on 21st JaUi1<iry, 1989. The 1st respon­
dents of these election cases contested the State Assemb:v dections as candidates or 
Indian National Congress(T). The petitioners fought th-� elections as candidates of 

Mizo National Front (MNF) from different constituencic". Results of the election 
were declared on 23rd January, 1989. They lost to th,.� candidates fielded by t�le 
Indian Nat onal Congress(I), i.e. the 1st respondents. The un successful MNF canJi­
dates, who lost their elections challenged the elections or the 1st respondents on the 
ground that they had indulged in and were guilty of corrupt practice. All these 15 
election petitions have been filed on one day that is on 9th March, 1989. Although 
the election petitions were filed, one Congress(I) candidate had succeeded from two 
constituencies and one candidate belonged to Mizo "lB.lional Front (Democratic 
Party). 

3. On service of notice of filing of the election petitions, the returned candidates 
entered appearance and contested the election petitioflS. They raised preliminary 
objections regarding the maintainability of the petitions on the basis of two pre1imi-. 
nary issues raised by them for consideration. They moved for striking out the plead­
ings. Thereupon the original petitioners applied for <lrnendment of their election 
petitions which were strongly opposed by the returned C;" ndidates. The preliminary 
objections of petitions for striking out the pleadings and amendment of the petition.;; 
were heard together. Two preliminary issues raised before this Court. Those were 

• 
, 

• 

• 
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whether the election petitions were in conforntity with the requirements of Sections 
81 and 83 of the Representation of the People Act, 1951 (for'short, 'the Act'), and the 
rules framed thereunder. After hearing the bbj&ti'orii against the proposed amend· 
ment and the maintainability of petition, the Court rejected the contentions holding 

• • that under the election law the Higli Court wi!s'eInpowered to pertnit'amendment'df 
the election petition with a view to amplifyinZ rIie �ve\'11lents bearing on the questiop 
of corrupt practice for' ensuring Ihe fair and, effecti ve trial of't'he election dispute 
'and in this view of,the matter'thi. court exatnined, th" averments of each paragraph 
hi detitils and dire\:ited the deletion or modification -bf cert�n paragraphs and the 
'averments which', were vague in natur�, or bereft of necessary particulars. 

• 

, " " 

4, The returned candidates being aggrieved, moved the Apex Court by filing 
SLPs. At the time of'adntission of those appeals, two questions were formulated for 
examination. Those were - "(i) whether the election petiti6ns were lia'ble to be dis� 
missed in limine under Section 83 'of the Act, and (ii) whether copies of the election 
petitions served on the respondents were true copies of the election petitions. The 
Apex Court disposed of the said appeals with the following observations : 

"The High Court has applied the correct test while permitting the amendments. 
The High Court has rightly pointed out that the power conferred by Section 86(5) 
cannot be exercised to allow any amendment which will have the effect of introducing 
a corrupt practice not previously alleged in the petitions.' If it is found that the 
proposed amendments are not in the nature of 'rupplying particulars but raise new 
grounds, the same must be rejected but if the amendments are sought for removing 
vagueness by confining the allegations to the returned candidate only such an amend-

• ment would fall within the parameters of Seotion 86(5) of the R.P. Act. It was on 
this correct understanding of the legal position that the High Court 'scrutinised the 
amendment application. It was not shown at the hearing of these appeals that any 
particular averments introduced by way of an amendment had the effect of introdu­
cing a totally new allegation of corrupt practice not previously pleaded in the election 
petitions. Yet, if the appellants can point out any inconsistency, the High Court 
will remove the same. . 

36. These were all the submissions made before us. We have dealt with them in 
extenso and have clarified the legal position. We have suggested certain modifications 
in the impugned orders and have indicated the course of action to be adopted by the 
High Court. We need not recapitulate the modifications and the futUre course of 
action. The impugned order of the High Court in each petition will stand modified 
to the extent it is inconsistent with the 'egal ':position explained hereinabove. The 
High Court win pass appropriate orders' to rem�e the inconsistencies'.' The appeals 
will stand allowed only to the extent of the modlficatibns/directions made by this pr 
order with no order as to cost in each ele(;�j(mj petition." .. , 

. !', '::, 
• ,3. ·· Tbe', validity of the election of the 1st 'respondents in· the aforesaid cases have 

been questioned on the ground of committing cqrrupt practlce wilhin·tI\'e meaning of 
• Seetiod"123(3) and 123(3A) of the Act by appealingt(fthe·voters on the. ground of re· 

ligi91t.;·· In fact, all the 14 election petitions had�.b.on' eopiedfrem '4 master copy and 
some pot\io;,' were kept 'vaeanl and filled iii .by b4i1IL'· ,EtectIo4i·petitibners.in all the 
ca .. s eMliiblted, several exhibits in all cases'tO:'sil0",'djidproye liIat the r"fumed cand).. 
dates·.tii�d. religious appeals (OJ, the �ottl'$"amt�ucjy ''tljIigiou. 'tlPf1eaJs· 'lire Mrrup!' 
pmcti<ie Within t1t<l' meaning 0[" Sec""" 'll2tl(�}!a!ltl"qn3(3A);1!fl"e �ct, "'I'M exbibitS 
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have beel1 printed and published by the Miwram Pradesh Congress Collll1littee (I) 
i.t. MPCC(I) all behalf of the ht respondents ill each petition with their consent, 
knowledge and active participation for furtberance of their prospect of election or Cor 
prejudicially affectil\j\ tbe election of tbe petitioners. Petitioners proved certain 
documents to prove that tbe respondents indulged in corrupt practice. The petition· 
ers proved election manifestos printed in Leite Press, Zoramthan811 Press, ExodU$ • •  
Press, Pamphlet "Operation Joshua", Leaflet - "Engnge Kan Vote Chhuah Ang" 
and tbeir English trall$lation, letter 10.4.92 from Exodus Press to Deputy Registrar, 
High Court, certificate dated 4.3.89 b): Exodus Press, letter dated 6.4.92 from J.a. 
Brothers to the Deputy Registrar, certificate dated 6.11.90 by J.R.Brothers, relevant 
pages of registers of J.R. Bros., letter dated 18.3.92 by Chief Election Officer to the 
Registrar, letter dated 15.12.88 by Oscar Fernande� to C.B.O., letter dated 22.12.88 
by Lalthanhawla to Chief Election Officer in r •• pect of various constituencies, eon· 
slitlltion of All India Congress Party, letter dated 13.4.92 by Saingura to Deputy 
Registrar, High Court, letter dated 10.4.92 by P. B. Nikhuma to Deputy Registrar 
regarding constitution of MPCC(I) amended in 1986, MPCcel) orBanisational sot u,P 
in India Today, Statesman, Sentinel, Assam Tribune, MNF aims and objects, MNF s 
election manifestos, Zoram Chhantu newspapers of various dates, MNF official news-
paper dated 6.1.89, certificate dated 4.2.90 of I.R.Bros., and various certificates 
ISSUed by printing presses All these papers and documents have been exhibited in 
almost al l the cases and marked as exhibits by different markings in different cases. 
According to petitioners the six exhibits in all the cases are ex facie incriminating 
which contain religious appeals to the voters and such religious appeal. are corrupt 
practice within the meaning of Sections 123(3) and 123(3A) of the Act. The petitioners 
furtber state that the exhibiti have been printed and published in Mizaram Pradesh _ 
Congress Committee (I) on behalf of the respondent. with their consent. As stated 
above, the elections of the returned candidates have been challenged on the ground • 

of indulging in corrupt practice, namely, making religious appeals to the voters which 
i, a corrupt practice Within the meaning of the Act. 

4. A char!!" of corrupt practice h.., two dimensional effect - it. impact on the 
returned candIdate has to be viewed from the point of view that a candidate's future 
political and public life and from the point of view of electorate to ensure the purity 
of tbe election. There can. therefore, be no doubt that such an allegation involving 
corrupt practice must be viewed very seriously and High Court should ensure compli· 
ance of tbe requirements of Section 83 pf the Aet before parties go to th. trial. It iB 
quite clear from the observations pfthe Apex Gourt in K.M. Mon<y vo. P.I.Anthony. 
The char�e of corrupt practice, if it io proved. the returned candidate"s election .hall 
be set aside. Not only that the retllrned c.andidalA! will b. debarred from figbting 
election for next six yeaci. Thorefore, tho Court should be very cautious in comins 
to tbe conclusion. The aliegation of corrupt practice must be proved beyond reaspn­
abl. doubt and if there is some doubt tIMon tbeCourtshould always be he.itant in !let­
ting aside the election on the ground of corrupt practice. In the existing political 
c1imat.o &dverWd 14 unless tbe eleaion jaw leads to jueh .n inevitable cone/usio.. -
ex)lOiinj a hiatus jll tho legi8la1ive effort to aohieve the avowed obj� of purity of 
election. AU libecal contltrU4llion of an electiPn law relating to CUl11Ipt PACt;.,. by • ;rf�aciiion of evide_ ill !be elliliUng politioal elimale where mlJ4..,linllinl iB commoll 

• do .. not""m!lMllld .. t he proper apprOllClb'etIviwged by the eieCtioD"'w. ThO 
purity Qf electioD i. tile _oe of delnoc,acyand prj)viding for ill¥alidadea· of lID 
� OQ the ground of cotllftliSiioll of any """lIpI pmetice i. the olljeot of OftIlulin. 
u... provisions, jt eattllOt be _ptN tbat: tb<: ekoII.iop ""ene havin.de.a_tod 0_ 
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the years, appreciation of evidence for determining the commission of a corrupt 
practice must b. made llbetally because of the lowet vatU!< in'tIt\! 81'elIll of eleotion. If 
the �ule of Law bas to be pre�l'Ved as . the esse1\ce Of clentO�raey of ",\lich purity of 

• • 

elections IS a necessary concollUtant, It IS the duty of the Q,urls to al'l'l'tc:iate the 
evidence and construe the law in a manlier which would subsetvc· tbts bj:her porpose 
and not even impercepetibly facilitated accel'tance, much less allfun� of t� fanm)! 
electoral standard. For deroocra:cy to sumve, tht l\'.lile of Law must prevail, and ,t 

• 

-

• 

is necessary that the best available men should be chosen as pe0l'!\os' representatives 
for proper governance of the country. This can' best be achitved through man of 
high moral and ethical value who win the elections on a positive vote obtained on their 
own ment not by negative vote of process of el!ihhlatibl\' �c!d' 011 comparative do­
merits of the candidates. It is alsO necessary that the impact of mOlley power or reli­
gious appeal which has eliminated ftom tbe electoral contest many men of undoubted 
ability and credibility for want of requisite IInancial sUP'por! shonld be able to re-entcr 
tbe field to make the people's choice meanindu!. Tliis can be achIeved only if the 
elections are contested on a positive vote anef the comparislon is between the merits 
and ability of the contestants without the inlluenoe of power and also the appeals 
made on religious basis. Their comparative demerits and their support of money 
power or on the basis of religious appeal apart from the other adverse consequences 
the growing inllnenee of money power and religious appeals have also the effect of 
promoting criminalisation of the politics. 

5. Tbe increasing electoral malpractice, of whicb same like booth capturing bave 
led even to amendment of the election law, make availability oftbe evidence difficult 
and this cannot be ignored while applying the standard a proof of a quasi-criminal 
charge for proof of corrupt practice. The existing law doe. Dot measure upto the 

• existing realties. The ceiling on eXl'enditure is fixed only in respect of el<pellditure 
incurred and authorised by the candIdate himself but the expenditure ineurred by the 
party for anyone else in his election campaign i. safely · outside lbe net of legal sanc­
tion. The spirit of the provision sutTers violation throuaJt the escape route. The 
prescription of ceiIing on expenditure by a candidate IS a mere eye-wash and no 
practical check on election expenses for which it was enacted to attain a meaningful 
democracy. Similarly, in case of relillious appeal also tbe candidate may not enter 
in indulging the corrupt practice by making religious appeals to the voters, but the 
candidates also .scape as the law may not be able to bind" the candidate. This lacuna 
in the law is, however, for the Parliament to fill lest lbe impression is reillfi>rced. A 
candidate should not make any religious appeal to woo the voters. TWs will definitely 
mar the sanctity and purity of the elections. But then, theele.tion petitions sli"n have 
to be decided in accordance with law. There may be lacunae in the provisions of law 
where�y a cand(date !ndulglJlj �orrupt practice Qr Usll1jl m.o�ey· po� or makina 
eIIceSSlve expenditure In tbe election, tbeygo scot fIT.e', .. liut it f$ tlie' 'l'arllllmCl\t to 
consider about all these to prevent the lacuna in tI)�aevtesCllt.tiol1 ,oqlle People Act. 
(See Gadak:h y •• hw)lJltrao KapIwrao vI. E, V. alias 'DalasaheltViIlbt' PatH a/ldothert : 
(1994) 1 sec 682). 

. 

o��;�;!::�t.�� with 
11 of trial $����j;t is same 

, in subs-
...... 'e ••• and 
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-th�n casting burden on the opposite party i.e. the returned candidate to rebut the same. 
"therefore, the Courf must keep in mind the fact that the choice of voters freely ex­
prelised should not be 1i�htly interfered with. In case of a linding against the retur­
neli candidate, he runs the risk of-being prosecuted as held in Hem Rajv. Ramji- LaI, 
reported in 1).IR 1975 SC 382. The charge of corrupt praelice must be proved by clear • "and cogent evidence as a charge of crimil1.al offence. It is not open to the Court to • 
"hold tliat the charge of corrupt practice is proved merely on the preponderance of 
'probability, but it must be satisfied that there is evidence to prove the charge beyond 
all reasonable doubt. The electoral process in this country, as held by the Supreme 
Court in N.C. Zeliang vs. Aju Newmai, reported in AIR 1981 SC 8, is an extremely 
expensive one and by declaring an election of a candidate null and void the entire 
process. so far as the candidate is concerned is set at naugh( resulting in re·e1ection. 
Such a course should be adopted only when the allegation of corrupt practice is pCHd 
conclusively. Similarly, a decision where it was held that the allegation regarding the 
commission of corrupt practice at an election is a very serious matter not only for the 
,candidate but for the public at large as it relates to the purit) of the electoral process. 

7, As held by the Apex Court in various decisions that l.h� election process should 
·not be upset by declaring an election null and void, as it will have a tremendous effect 
in the society. When an election is declared null and void and as there would be a 
re-election, besides the expenses, the full process will be r:l;:cde topsy turvy. 

8. However, in the present cases such questions may not be relevant in as much as 
the period of election has already been over. The election \\as held in 1989 and the 
period expired after 5 years. The next General Election h,iU also been held in Mizo· 
ram in 1993. Therefore, the question of re·election will not arise. But then, a deci-_ 
sion of this Court declaring the elections of the 1st respondents null and void on the 
ground of indulging in corrupt practice will definitely ent,�il a serious consequencE's, 
namely, the reputation of the returned candidate will be at :,take and they would be 
debarred from contesting in the subsequent elections for a considerable period. 

9. All these 15 election petitions were filed by one set of learned counsel. How­
ever, after some time a new set of learned counsel substituted those earlier counsel. 
The present set of counsels at first took up all the cases. However, during trial, the 
present counsel for the petitioners, namely, Mr.A.K.Bhattacharyya, Senior Advocate, 
Mr. A.K.Das and Mr. K.Agarwal, Advocates had withdra\\n from election cases i.c. 
Ejection Case Nos. 10(0)/89, 19(0)/89 and 20(0)/89. 

fa., .. The d�cuments, namely, the exhibits have been proved by common witnesses 
in the election .petitions. However, the petitioners did not examine any witness in 
EIl'eiion Case Nos. 10(0)/89, 19(0)/89 and 20(0)/89. Common witnesses, i.e. Lal­
nghakU;Ina, J.Laltlanmawia, C.Dinthanga, Lalduhawma and LalzawmHana were 
examined in all cases exceptthose case Nos. 10(0)/89, 19(G)/89 and 20(G)/89. In·alI 
these cases the following issues have been framed :-

(I) Wheth�r lh� respondent No.·1 published the campaign literatures, elec- • 
!ion ma"ifes\os (Anne!,ure-I and.iI), pamphlets (Annexures III and IV), 
sticker {Annexwe�Y.) and !tand bills (A.n:n;exures,VI) and circulated and dis­
tributed the s��¢: ��r�n�. Ws �ecth:>D c�$I;'aign, public mee�ings and. d<;)Qr 
t\'. �?or eanya�&�ng.1q dIff�rent town ,a,nd . VIllages as alleged.· �n th� 1 electJOl1: petitJOn. . . . .. .  . 

• 

• 
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(2) Whether the respondent No. 1 himself addressed public meetings as alleged in the election petition 
and whether before addressing the said meetings and/or during the meetings the respondent distributed 
the aforesaid campaign literature. 

(3) Whether the aforesaid acts of the respondent No. 1 amounted to corrupt practice within the meaning 
of sub-sections (1A)(b), (2), (3), (3A) and (4) of Section 123 of the Representation of Peoples Act. 

(4) Whether the election of the respondent No. 1 is liable to be set aside. 

(5) To what relief the parties are entitled to. 

11. ISSUE NOS. 1, 2 AND 3. 

  These issues are taken up together for convenience. First let me consider whether the six exhibits, 
namely, Exhibits P-1 series to P-6 series contain religious appeals to the voters and whether such religious appeals 
are corrupt practice within the meaning of Section 123 and whether those exhibits had been printed and 
published in Mizoram by Mizoram Pradesh Congress Committee (I) i.e. MPCC(I) on behalf of 1st respondents with 
their consent, knowledge and active participation of the 1st respondents for furtherance of the prospect of their 
election of for  prejudicially affecting the election of the petitioners. According to the petitioners the offending 
statements contained in those exhibits. All those exhibits were in Mizo and these had been translated with the aid 
of the interpreters. 

12. Before I decide those question, it will be apposite to consider the provisions of Section 123(3) of the Act 
which relates to corrupt practice on the ground of religious appeals. I quote Section 123 (3) :- 

(3) The appeal by a candidate or his agent or by any other person with the consent of a candidate or his 
election agent to vote or refrain from voting for any person n the ground of his religion, race, caste, 
community or language or the use of, or appeal to religious symbols or the use of, or appeal to, national 
symbols, such as the national flag or the national emblem, for the furtherance of the prospects of the election 
of that candidate or for prejudicially affecting the election of any candidate. 

Provided that no symbol allotted under this Act to a candidate shall be deemed to be a religious 
symbol or a national symbol for the purposes of this clause.” 

 Sub-sections (2), (3) and (3A) of Section 123 have been enacted so as to eliminate from the electoral 
process the appeal to those decisive factors rouse irrational passions that run counter to the basics tanets of the 
Constitution and indeed of any civilized political or social order. Due respect for religious belief and practice, race, 
creed and culture and language of the other citizens is one of the basic postulates of the democratic system. The 
line has to be drawn by the court between what is permissible and what is prohibited after taking into account all 
the facts and circumstances of each case with reference to the context in which the statements or the acts 
complained of are made. Corrupt practice need not be committed by a candidate 
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idone. Appeal to ,vpt'ers on the ground of sect or religion Gll1 be it corrupt practice 
everi though the' rival candidate belong to the s'ame religion. Therefore, it]$ to be 
seen whether the documents 'Exts P-J to P�6 and P-IO coll1ain any religious appeal 
which may be said to be corrupt practice within the mcalllng of Section I_d' (3). Peti­
ti�ners' witnesses Mr. La,lduhawma, Mr. Lalnghakliana, MI". L· H.Lianhming Thanga 
Mt Laltlanmawia", l\1.r. C.Dinthanga and Mr LalzawmUan<l proved the said exhibit� 
ih: ill the cases. Ext P-l is' the election manifesto of Assembly election of·Mizorarn 
Pradesh Coagrcss (1) Committee. In page I it says- . , BeclJ"i ilg in mind the steps we 
have taken towards wrong direction, MPCC(I) . . .. determil!t: 10 form Chiristian Go­
vernment (Govt. of Christians) to minister ·the people in accordance with the Gospel 
of the Christ which is our national foundation . "  Again in page 2 it was \vritten �'OL'R 
WANTS: Even though we live in the remotest corner of the country, God has found 
us and destined us to preach and propagate the Gospel of Christ. To know the 
reason why we have to live in a country (India) where we cannot but feel a stranger 
we must understand the programme of God. It is impel';.llj\ e thelt we must hav� 
freedom of-religion· to preach and propagate the'Gospel. We have had an experience 
fiojn�'the Janata -[\1inistry which opposed freedom of the reiigion. Therefore, we the 
Chfistiitns should take steps and pray t6 God for estab!ishin,g Cong(I) Govt. \\:hi�h is 
'�(h)1mitt�d to a policy of freedom of religion." 

• • 

13'. In page 3 it says--'-"To give due share to the poor is the rjghtest administra­
tion and thls should be the system of Kristian Govt. When the poor get their 
due share more new Missionary fields." Then in the manifeqo it is further stated at 
page 12, "To prescribe new text books based 'on Christian doctrines and corner stone 
of our national life". Similarly in Ext P-21(a) it  is writtel1� "Arrangement" would 
be made for Mizos to visit Holy Land". In Ext. P-2J(b) it (-; \\Tltten- "To revise and 
ptescribe educational text books based on Christian teachjllg� and culture of Mizos. • 
In 'Ext 'P--16 It is written- "Using this natural heritage a<; it corner stone, the Mizo­
ram Congress (I) has prepared itself to form Christian Government. If God' and 
the people agree to form the Congress(l) Govt. it will be a Government of the poor. 
'Bes'idest:he normal steps which have been taken toward the Salvation of the poor, the 
Congress (I) has launched OPERATION JOSHUA to uplift the needy and the poor. 
rt:i,s·the Operation-Joshua which will bring us the New' Mlzor'lm". Tn Ext. P-17 which 
is' an En O'iish trarislation of the leaflet where it-is written� "\Var against the- Church and 
sa,tt"ifice·"of human blood"� It is fmcher �.ritten, ''If.'�l' vOi.e for Congress (I) . . .. 
Cliri'stlan Government (Govt. for Christian) . . i. Faclhty 10 go t9" the Holy land 
(Jerusalem) for the Mizos." - . 

14:' ; fhave qlloted the relevant· portions of'ExhiQits melltloned. Now it is to be 
:�eeri whether those s'tateinents or appeals made to' the voter.;;, ;\ 810unt to c9ffupt prac� 
tice within the meaning of Section 123 (3) of the Act . ' 

'f),' 'In Abdul Hussain Mir v, SbamsUI 'Huda. AIR 1975 SC 1612, 
;>--t,h�' ",Apex Court observed thus : 

• 

',,: �:: 

" .... the.re was an endemic sensitivity to election propaganda and -ri;retl1od 
in certain regions which would be w�sted s.t�ategy els�'Yh�'re _-b,e_cau�e QuAlitn • 

resPQnse� �lffer according te the s,e��p'()htJcal condltJoniilg or!jrbul1s .. �nd 
commuruties .  Here we are concCrn.ed'W1th a tnbal area of' ASsam . a tiOr�tr 

, .. "State- wi.th --�. ,heterogenous c'o:tDJ'<?�ition: of tribesmen, va�efy ffl��u' ;l?ilter-
. . . , ' , " ' " .. , -- ' 

--
-' " 

, " -, 

• 

• 



• •  

• 
• 

• 
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s.uasion; plainsmen 'Hindus aIid' � eO�ls'id�rab1e �,u:p:tber of, �us�inis.. 'A m':ll­
la 'or m'uslinr minipriest may ,haVe sway. over hlS ort�odox floC;k here whde 
elsewhere his voice may be ignored.· A thr'cat bf East Pakistan type terror 
<ir J,no-P akistan brandmg is prone'to frighten many here· while in Central 
indIa or the South such a bogey maY' have lesS mmatory Impact. RehglOus 

. appl!al or �om�uital al?petite ir:t, <1; hi. goted a�
,
d back-war� 'p?pulation is 

str,',ng..:r tnan ' in an enhghtl!oed o,t �n�J1ferent �r. o.ther area w�Tn- � long tr�­
ditj'on oj"' peacefol'co-exlst�nc:e' ot: vabegated' relIgIOus groups or c{'l�mopoh-
tan poople.· It all depends on the socio-political J'atho�Y:4r· ,ensibiHiy 
of each prdvi'n'-ee' or constItuency:"!. : :. • ... Eveh so, "ce_rtam baS1C ·legal. guKJe­
lines 'canaot be lost sight of while adjudging -an -election dispute: 'The ver­
dict at the po1l5 wears a pro�ccti"c mantlc in a ?cl11ocratkpoJity. The Court 
will vacate such -ballot cpunt 'return only -on pro,of bey�md reasonable doubt 
of corrupt p'ractices. Charges, such- as have' been imputed here', a.re viewed 
-as quasi-criminal, 'carrying other penalties thaT: losing a scat, and strong 
testimony is needed to subvert a Relurning Officer's declaration. : .. " 

16. Supreme Court again in Rahim Khan v. Khurshid Ahmed ' fi'Q.d other�, 
reported in AIR 1975 SC 290, dealt with the corrupt practice on ·the basis of 
religious appeal. In the said case the Supreme Couft observed thus: ' 

'" .... And yet the electoral law construes religion 'based on apparel. appro­
ved food and other externals. How: about appeal to anti-reHgion? That one 
is a RO),ist or rationalist and the rival a religious' soul and too other-worldly? 
Rabid communalism is the real enemy. Let. that be identified by law. A 
second look at this labyrinth of law is in keeping wit�'chC1;nging' times. Th,e 

''''voice in,the wilderness" words of this Court in Ambika Saran Singh's caSe 
41 Ele LR 183 (SC) at P.189 bear repetitibn ' : 

. "Indian leadership has long condemned electoral campaigns'on' the lines 
of -caste and cOmmunity' as - being destructive of the' country,'s integratio,n 
and the concept of secular democracy which is' the ba�is of mil CQnstitutioil. 
It is th;,; condemnation which is reflected in "Section 123 (3) of the Act. In 
spite of the repeated condemnation, ' experience has :shown that 'where there 
is such a constituency it has been unfortunately �oo tempting for a candidate 

. to resist appeaJing to' 'sectional e]ement�'-t(r,ca$r'tlteir votes o�,ca'ste. basis_:" 
' �1 _. - '",_, ' -' , • , :'! , � d '  l','tl' ' , '" . " 

•.• Every·patty silently says 'he who hastJah1.nn6(j;liit
·
1iiritc�it tM:fir'sf .�tori� :' 

. 'for'tlle purpose of this case, suffice· t<isay b<ith sidbagne tIiat Ex., ·P.W. 
4/3 appeals to religion." .. . 

-,t1.' ,.,'}�-_ the. -pr�s,en�' -case, i�'i.s to be �.�eh-�he.t�e(� lbafI�ts.�pa¢p.til�ts; manife'st�s 
�'nd'sflckers contatl> any religIOUS appeal Within ttie·meAIImg df SeCI10i1123(�) of the 
Ri.p:Act.· AsI have a1Tea!iy saidtMt the Miioram is anuySlliie in the. exlreme cor­
M. ofthe Nortfi ·East · Almost 90%, of the peop le are'Chiisl1iins. It is :liso known 

. !:e
e
������t�l�����rm!t� �r:.C���i:Ii��i��:: �e*�i;#f£:ltci��ti��, 

mly·be bom th� pelllloru:rs and the retur ..... caJIilidat� bJ1!0ii·· .�Ire·sJftie ·religion. 
IhFVIigioul appMliil Didjfe, i.ltbat · 'U,7caitdlllife.jla>1n�' ol\!·a hllPSusa al 
Ulc� .�. '!�rilItian. ��v�t'!\n(�nt", "�. �to �OJi;"m,t�'iift(�L.·� ,�#�e l>���pe of 
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Christian religion” are likely to rouse the religious feeling and may influence the voters. Exhibits P-1 to P-6, 
namely, the stickers, leaflets, pamphlets and manifestos are all aimed to woo the voters on the ground of 
religion. There can be no hesitation in saying that when a candidate says that if he is returned to power he 
will make a Christian Government, it would definitely be a religious appeal. Similarly, if a can-date issues 
pamphlets saying that if his party is returned to power then every Mizo would be given a free trip to Holy 
land – “Jerusalem”. This is another instance of rousing the religious feeling and influencing the voters on 
the bases of religion. Similarly, the other statements made in Exhibits P-1 to P-6 are also definitely religious 
appeals and I have no hesitation in holding that these religious appeals had influenced the min of the 
voters. 

18. The first portion of Issue No. 1 that whether the leaflets, pamphlets, manifes-tos, stickers contain 
the offending statements within the meaning of Section 123 (3). Having gone through those documents 
Exhibits P-1 to P-6, I am of opinion that those are offending statements under Section 123. 

19. The next question to be seen is who printed and published those Exhibits P-1 to P-6 documents, 
namely, leaflets, stickers, manifestos, etc. 

20. In order to upset an election and declare the election void or declare that a person is guilty of 
corrupt practice under Section 123(3) , the allegations must be proved beyond reasonable doubt. In order 
to hold a candidate guilty of corrupt practice, it must be proved that appeal by a candidate or his agent to 
vote or refrain from voting for any person have made. From bare reading of sub-section (3) of Section 123 
it is clear that if an appeal is made by a candidate or by his agent directly, and it is proved beyond 
reasonable doubt, the election shall have to be upset. But if some other persons have done so then the 
proof that it have been done with the consent of the candidate or his election agent, is necessary for the 
purpose of upsetting the election of a returned candidate. It is to be seen whether these offending 
materials Exts. P-1 to P-6 have been published by the candidate or his agent or any other person with the 
consent of the candidate or his agent. To come to conclusion it will be necessary to go through the 
evidence of witnesses. 

21. The first question that comes in the mind is whether these Exhibits P-1 to p-6 series have been 
printed/published by the candidate or his agent or by any other per- son with the consent of the returned 
candidate or his agents. For that purpose it is necessary for us to go through the evidence of the witnesses 
who proved those documents. 

22. Mr. Bhattacharya, learned counsel for the election petitioners urged before this Court that all the 
six exhibits, namely, P-1 to P-6 series had been published by Mizoram Pradesh Congress Committee (1) on 
behalf of the respondents with the consent and active participation of the 1st respondents for furtherance 
of the pros-pects of their election or for prejudicially affecting the election of the petitioners. He further 
contended that the requirement of proving the allegation of corrupt practice beyond reasonable doubt, did 
not mean that the persons against whom allegations of corrupt practice had been made could remain mum 
without making any attempt to disprove the allegation before a Court of law. Therefore, it is necessary for 
the respondents also to take effective steps to assist the Court in finding out the truth or 
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falsiW,of,1ihe allegati01H' ,made, Accordinglo.the .learnedcounsel, ,in ·the present cases, 
Ihe petitioners hacl 8utloossliull¥ pr0¥ed tbe ;priDtingan<l ,publishing of the 'offen<ling 
documents with the ,consent ,and kn(Jwledge or the 1st 'l'espondents beyond Teasona­
hie d"ubt. 

• • 23. Mr. Lalduhawma -is ,a w.itness for the Ipetiti()ners.to .prove·some <of the docu-
ments. In his evidence he stated, inter a1ia� that he was .a member of lndian Police 
Service. He served as Deputy Commissioner of Police in Delhi Police. In 1984 
Mrs. Indira Gandhi, the then Prime Minister of In''ia and the President of the Indian 
National Congress asked him to resign and serve her party for the State ·of Mizoram. 
Accordingly, h" resigned and thereafter in the month of May, 1984 he became the 
President of the Mizoram Pradesh Congress (1.,). During that time he also held the 
office of the Vice President, North Eastern Co-ngress Co-ordination Committee (1). 

• He also was the Member of All India Congress Comntittee {I). He stated that when 
he was in Congress Party, Oscar Fernandez was also in Congress Party. He proved 
Ext. P-19 and Ext. P-21. By Ext. P-21 Mr. Lalthanhawla intimated the names of the 
candidates of various constituencies. This witness only proved that Mr.Lalthanhawl-a 
was the President of MPCC (I) and Mr. Oscar Fernandez wrote letters authorising 
Mr. Lalthanhawla to act as President. After reading the nature of evidence, I do not 
find that this ,,\'itness proved any offending documents, namely, Ext. P-I to P-6 had 
been printed by the MPCC (I) or by the returne<l candidate. Besides, this witness had 
at one time been a member of the Congress Party. He left the party when he was a 
Member of the Lok Sabha. His membership in the Parliament was taken away under 
the Anti Defection Law. Thereafter, he joined MNF Party. This witness js defini-

• tely an interested witness who left the Congress party belonging to the returned can-

• 

• didate. 

• 

24. P.W. 8 'Mr. J. Laltlanmawia stated in his evidence that he was a businessman 
by profession. He had a Printing Press, namely, J.R. Brothers' Offset Printers at Ai­
zawl. He was the proprietor of the said press. He also stated that during ejection 
in 1989, Mizoram Pradesh Congress Committee (I) had given him a verbal order to 
print stickers for its party. MPCC (I) sent him a specimen of sticker from its office. 
Ext. P-6 was that specimen sticker which he had received from MPCC (I). Accor­
dingly. he printed that sticker. Ext. P-6 contained some hand .. written portion in 
Mizo language. While receiving Ext. P-6 from Congress Offif;C it contained hand­
written portion. Ext. P-6 contained an instruction to print one lac m1mber of stic­
kers. The sticker contained a hand-written portion in Mizo which means "for Mizos 
and Christians let us vote for Congress." Ext. P-6(a) was one of the handwritten 
portions. Ext. P-6(b) was also one handwritten portion in Mizo. P-6(c) was the 
instruction on the number of stickers to be printed. As per the jns1Iuctions contai­
ned in Ext. P-6. he printed ODe lac copies of stickers. Ext. P-6 (:ontained a picture 
of hand which was the emblem of the Congr ... (I), Ext. P-«d) was anolher copy 
of emblem of the Congress (I) which he produ.e<l before thi. Court " per the 1ettor 
written by the Deputy Registrar of this Court. 

25. Afteqninting the sticken he took tbem to MPCC (I) olliceJur delivering them. 
He delivered thmt to a gentleman (wh_ name be di" 11Ol. tisol.,.) ill tho MPCC (I) 
office. Ext. P-6(c) also contained an inslJ'llctlon 10 print at 1qasl rlY9 thousand 
copies within a week and to deliver them. The gentleman in MPCC (I) office received 
thinticlcers, hut he did .... ·give any teccipt. & also did. !WI si�e tIlena,," of the 
ptl'SOD. Ext. P-! was. certificate certifying number of otiokcn printO<! by him a"" 
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the price charged thereof. This certificate was given to MNl on their request. It 
contained two samples of the stickers (Ext. P-6). Ext. P-8( l) a ll! P-8(2) were his signa­
tures. Exts. P-8(3) and P-8(4) were two samples of the afOl'C-:,did stickers. Ext. P-8 
was received on behalf of the MNF by Lalnghenga. Ext. P-8(S" was the endorsement 
with signature showing the receipt of Ext. P-8 by MNF. �:"_X1. P-9 was the register 
of his office showing the number of materials published [0 j' d ,  f-ferent persons. This 
register was also produced by him in pursuance of the order rJ ! "  this Court. Ext. P-9 
(a) was the endorsement regarding placing of orders by the l\'1 [J :-'C (1), number ofstic­
kers to be printed, advance money paid, price of each sticker a:1C receipt of the stic kers 
at the MPCC (1) office. Ext. P-9 was written by him. Ext. P-9 contained his signa­
ture but, Ext. P-9(a) did not contain his signature. The prir,;e of stickers had been 
paid to him by the MPCC (I). The money was paid to him jCl ;ash. He had entered 
all the orders of printing materials given by different custern.ti s. In cross-examina­
tion this witness atmitted that there was no official order f(1i' printing the stickers 
by MPCC (I). 

26. Mr. C.Dinthanga also owned a press. The nam� 0.:" : , ; ; press was LeIte Prin­
ting Press. He stated that he printed the election manif(,::",,' of IViPCC (1) of the 
General Assembly Election held in 1989. Ext . P-l was r;'It. said manifesto. He 
however, could not say who actually placed the order. But 1 f(� \)fder was placed ver­
bally. He printed five thousand copies of the election nn.! f�sto. After printing 
he delivered them to a gentleman belonging to MPCC (1). U-fe did not give the name 
of the person). Treasurer of MPCC (1) paid the price foc : ' inting Ext. P-l .  The 
paym�nt was made in cash. He also stated that order for ))r ' J " jag of election mani­
festo was placed by MPCC (1) party. However, he did llCH :-dcntion who gave the 
ord.;:r. Th>:':re was a verbal order. This witness admitted th_� l ihcre was no evidence 
to show that he received money towards printing charge frdLl the lVIPCC (I). He 
also in a similar manner carried the printed materials an� c divered to MPCC (1) 
party. He did not remember what was the amount he rec.:;vuJ. He also could not 
give the name of the person to whom the manifesto we.s d�iiv,;·rcd. This witness was 
shown a document marked Ext. R-4. He admitted the signati.lrc in Ext. R-4 marked 
as Ext. R-4(1) to be his signature. Ext. R-4 certificate v,'as j"sucd to Mr.Vanlal­
ngh'lka, MLA (Respondent 1 in E.P.No.8). The name of the :;aid man was written 
in his own hand. He issued a similar certificate to other Congress (I) candidates, but 
he did not exactly remember. 

27. Mr. Lalzawmliana is another witness. He owns a press known as Exodus 
Press at Aizawl. He also made similar statements. In his deposition he stated that 
in the last general election held in 1989 he printed election materials for Congress (I). 
He did not remember who actually placed the order. He did not yet receive the pay­
m�nt, etc. He submitted the bill to the Congress Bhawan office. However, nothing 
was shown to prove that he submitted his bills. Ext. P-3 was printed in his press and 
published by MPCC (I). Ext. P-IO was also printed by him in his press and this was 
published by MPCC (I). Ext. P-4 was a certificate given by him regarding publication 
of the election manifesto in 1989 election as ordered by MPCC (I). Ext. P-4(1 )  was 
rus signature. Ext. P-4 was given to Danmawia, son of LaJdenga on his request. 
Mr. Laldenga was the MNF President. He wrote Ext. P-29 to the Deputy Registrar 
(Judicial), Gauhati High Court at Guwahati. 

28. Mr. Lalthanmawia was the owner of J. R. Brothers' Offset Printers, Mr. 
C. Dinthanga was the owner of another press known as Leite Printing Press and 

• • 

• 
• 

• 
• 
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Mr. Lalzawmliana waS the owner of Exodus press. AIl these three witnesses are 
common witnesses in all the election petitions where the petitioners contested. 

29. All the three witnesses, namely, Laltlanmawia fo l.R. Brothers, C. Dinthanga 
of LeIte Press and Lalzawm1iana of Exodus Press gave their evidence regarding prin­
ting of material:; i.e. Ext. P-l to P-6 series. 

30. Now, from the evidence it is to be seen whether the petitioners have been 
able to prove that the election materials Ext. P-l to P-6 containing offending mate­
rials were printed by the 1st respondents or their agents or by any person with their 
.consent and knowledge . 

• 31 .  On going through the evidence ofP.Ws Lalllanmawia of l.R. Brothers, C. Din­
thanga of LeIte Press and Lalzawmliana of Exodus Press, it appears that these witnes­
ses received verbal orders to print election materials for the Congress Party. MPCC 
(I), sent specimen stickers from its office. PW 8 Laltlanmawia printed the stickers 
where it was written "'for Mizos and Christians let us vote for Congress". After prin­
ting the stickers this witness took them to MPCC (I) office for delivering them. He 
delivered them to a gentleman in MPCC (1) office though he did not know his name. 
The gentleman in the office of MPCC (I) received the stickers, but he did not give any 
receipt. This witness proved Ext. P-9 - a register of his offic,e showing the number 
of materials published for different persons. This register was also produced by him 
in pursuance of the order of this Court. In the register there was endorsement regar-

• ding number of stickers printed, advance money paid, price of each sticker and receipt 
of stickers at the MPCC (I) office. Ext. P-9(a) - endorsement was written by him. 

• It did not contain his signature. The money was paid in cash. He entered all the 
orders of printing materials given by different customers. In Ext. P-9 register the en­
dorsement in item No. 4 showing the order placed by Mizoram Congress (I) for PVC 
stickers. The column showing the total amount, total expenditure, profit, number 
of working days and date of delivery were all left blank. Ext. serial No. 4 all other 
items, namely, . 1 , 2, 3, 6, 7 and 8, the columns were filled in. From the evidence of 
this witness it is not very clear actually who placed the order for printing those stickers. 
After printing he delivered the materials, namely, stickers to a gentleman in the office 
of the MPCC (I). However, he did not give the name of the person who received it. 
Besides, he did not obtain any receipt. He also did not explain why the amount of 
money he received in cash. In fact it is not authorised under the law to receive cash 
of such huge amount. He specifically stated in cross-examination that there was no 
official order for printing of stickers by MPCqI) party, but there was verbal order. 
This witness did not give the particulars regarding placing of order by the person and 
the person to whom the materials were delivered and from whom the money was 
received. He also did not state whether the entire amount was received or not. If 
the entire amount was not received I find no evidence t6 show that he made any effort 

• to get money by any correspondence. From this witness at least it is not established 
that the lst respondent or his agent placed order for printing the stickers containing the 

• offending writings. There is also no acceptable evidence that MPCC (I) placed order. 

32. Similarly, witness C. Dinthanga also did not give any definite · information 
regarding the person who placed tbe order. In· his evidence l\e only stated tbat he 
printed the election manifesto of MPCC (I) of the Assembly E1eciipn held in 1989. 
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He printed the election manifesto Ext. 9-1 .  However, he rid 110t remember ,who pla­
ced the order, The order was, however, p1=d verbally, He further stated that he 
printed five thousand number of election manifesto on the request of MPCC (1) party_ 
He could not say the name of the person to whom he gave delivery of 5000 copies. 
The Treasurer of Mpcc (I) paid him the prjce for priming. Payment was made in 
cash. He stated that he did not maintain any register or ac{.;ount book about the • • 
delivery, receipt of the orders and receipt of money. He ad m i �ted that there was no 
evidence to show that he received money towards the P!Oi{lilllg charge. He himself 
carried the printing mater.ials and delivered to MPCC ( i f  i)alty. Hov,ever, he did 
not remember what was the amount he received. He also did not remember whe-
ther :vIPCC (I) set up any candidate for election or it \�'as : ndian National Congress. 
From th� evidence of this witness also there is nothing 10 s� ow that the MPCC ( I )  
placed order for printing the materials. Except the 01',,1 s'atement that the order 
was placed verbally there is no other evidence to sho", teal the MFCC (1) had placEd 
order, rec:eived the printed materials and made payment. ri 1 e evidence of Lalza",m-
Hana also is not enough to prove that the MPCC (I) placed a;;y order for printjr,g the 
said election materials. In cross-examination , to a quc�cicJ1 whether he kne" 'Aho 
placed the order for printing Ext. P-3 and Ext. P-lO, he st,.-rc,j. "As all parties placed 
orders T do not remember who placed order and belongs 1c  which party". He fur-
ther stated that Respondent No.1 did not place any order for printing any ejection 
materials in his press. The party which set up the Responui"'jC ' No. 1 ,  namely, Indian 
�ational Congress (I) did not place any order for publicaLicn of the election materials. 
These are the three witnesses through whom the petitionc ; :, h'anted to prove tbat 1h( 
election materials were printed in their presses and the 0 l:' rs were p12ct:d ty 1 r e  
MPCC (I) verbally and tbe mateIials were delivered t:y ] )  (; respective press ownrr::. • 
in the office of the MPCC (I) at Aizawl. However, these VI,j .\"i2sses have not been able . 
to prove who actually placed the orders and who received the printed materials. A�, 
has been held by the various decisions of the Apex Court, "!Y.� charge ofcorruptprac-
tice should be proved beyond reasonable doubt. As a set cf ',\'itnesses were examined 
by the petitioners, the allegation of corrupt practice has to bn dewed taking into con­
sideration the circumstances of the case. There are no lel'ct! litmus tests to discover 
the honest conscience of a human being and the canons oi\rL'f:hfulness of oral eviden-
ce. The fact that the Court is not ready to act on the tcsi ' n�ony of a person does not 
mean that he is a perjurer. It merely means that on such h:;,;timony it is not safe to 
conclude in a quasi-criminal proceeding that a corrurl fm.ctice had been proved 
beyond reasonable doubt. It must be remembered that the 'vYfJle constituency is silen-
tly present before the Court. The Court must emphasise tlH': danger of believing at 
its face value of oral evidence in an election case without the hacking of sure circum­
stances or indubitable documents. It must be remembered that the corrupt practices 
may perhaps be proved by hiring witnesses apparently re:;,pcctable and dis-interested , 
to speak in short and simple episodes such as that a smal l \'illage meeting took place 
where make statement which may amount tQ COff"Qpt pr2-ctice. There is no X-ray 
whereby the dishonesty of the story can be established and if the Courts were gullible 
enought to gulp such oral versions and invalidate e1ectjons, a new menace to our • 
electoral system would take place through the judicial a-rparatus. It is ext..emeJy 
unsafe, in the present climate of election competitions and partisan witnesses wearing • 
robes of varacity to upturn a hard won electoral victory merely because lip servlce to 
a coqVpt praytice has been renc;lered by some sal;lctimonious witnesses. Th� Court 
must Ipok for s�rious. assurance, circumstances o.n unimpcachabte documents to up-
l\ol� �r�ve. �h�rii,� cir'cUITupt practices whic.\l '!'ight not merely cancel the election 
result, but extinguish many a man's public hfe. 
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Supreme" court °obsetved thus " --- - '. . . 
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. "Even so"" certain b�sic ,legal guideline,�_ cannot. be lost sight . of while 
" adjudgi,[g an etection �jspute: -rhe vetdic� at 'the, poils ,w�ars II prolective 

mantIc Ill , a democrattc polIty. The Court wIll vacate such ,D�J10t cdunt 
return only ' oll proof ' beyolld reasonable <!pubt of cortJlpt i>racti�'''. 
Chargl�s�', such a.s 'have .been imputed' her�, ar�_-' ,viewed . . as �uh-sj-crirfiinal. 
carrying other 'penaltjes ' than losing a seat', and'- st.r?ol testimotJy- js 'needed 

• 

• 

• 

to subvert a Returning' Offic�t's declaration'," " . ' - , 

. � " - . 

34. "' In another decision in Kanl"�iyalaJ vs. Manualal aDd oth�"s, �eilOtted In ,Uit 
1976 SC 1886, the Supreme Court observed - ' 

. "So far as, however, the distribution of the pamphlet on 2nd March� 
191.2, at Jawi. and �hadoli, which alo�e survives for consi�erati?'n, the 
petItioner relIes entnely upon oral testImony and the court wl11 have to' be 
cautious and circumspect in accepting the same." 

' 

The Supreme Court in the said decision, quoting a portion of the decision i n  
Rahim Khan v. Khurshid Ahmed, reported in AIR 1975 SC 290, observed that ordina­
rily the Court would be slow to interfere with the findings of the High Court. Again 
at paragraph 46 the Supreme Court observed thus-

"46. Oral testimony, therefore, wil1 have to be judged with the greatest 
care and an electoral victory cannot be allowed to be nullified by a moutliful 
of oral testimony withoat contemporaneous assurance of a reliable nature 
from an independent so¥rce. The matter would have been different if there 
had been an immediatF " .. 'dtteo Gomplaint to the Returning Officer agaim:t 
Kanhaiyalal as had been made in the case of his workers." 

An election- dispute is' not a private feud between one iridividua and [lno1l1er. 
The whole constituency is intimately involved in stich a dispute. Shaky and wave­
ring oral -testimony of a handful of witnesses cannot still th'e dominant voice of the 
'majority of an electorat�: ' .  . 

• 

35. In S.Harcharan Singh v. 8.Sajjan Singh anll "thers;reported in (1985) 1 SCC 370, 
!the Supereme, Court once again held thus :- . ' ' 

. " . ' ' . , ' . 

. -" "  

�"In a mattet of this nature;- the evidence itatoraliy is mostly oraL There­
fore specially where the charge is grave one, namely, corrupt practice which 
if prov�d would disen�itle, t�e ��nc;li��t.e �o. �Qn�st ,��_e e��ction for some time 
to co!".e, the cOlitfs ,mnsn:noceed ",l!II �antIOn' I'.:Ij. electIon once beld ou�ht 
not lie treated ID a hght-Heartoo manner and, defeated candIda!!, should not 

: get,' '1way, wii�:'it ,,01' fiHng el�cti?'l ,;��titjon." :; : < , .
.

. 
� . " , . " " . � " " . •  ' I .  _ . . " , . , ,, ,  
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make it wel1�nigh impossible to prove an allegation of corrupt practice. Such an 
approach would defeat and frustrate the very laudable and sacrosanct object of the 
Act in maintaining purity of the electoral process. 

36. On the basis of the decisions cited above, now we have to see whether the 
printing materials Were published by the returned candidate or his agent or by any • •  perSOn with the knowledge and consent of the returned cadi dates or their agents. 
From the evidence of three witnesses discussed above I do not find anything specific 
to show that the offending materials were ordered to be printed in their presses by the 
returned candidates or their a.gents or by their party with their consent. There is no 
evidence whatsoever to show that at any time the returned candidates or their agent 
placed orders. In fact the witnesses did not remember who placed the orders. 
However, the witnesses mentioned that orders for printing of the election materials 
were placed by the MPCC (I). The petitioners have totally failed to prove actually 
who placed the orders. All the three witnesses stated that the orders Were placed 
verbally by some one whose name the witnesses did not remember. Besides, at the 
time of delivery also the same story was told by all the three witnesses by saying that 
those witnesses went to the office of the MPCC (I) and delivered the printed materials 
to some person whom they did not know. There is no documentary evidence before 
this Court to show that actually the printed materials were supplied to the MPCC(I). 
It is not expected of a businessman to deliver materials to any person without obtain-
ing any receipt of aCknowledgement. These witnesses also could not say the name 
of the person to whom the printed materials were delivered . Attempt was made to 
show a register by witness Mr. l Laltlanmawia. This register was also not aceptable 
in as much as the only portion was regarding the placing of order by the MPCC (I). • 
At least 4/5 columns were kept blank. One witness stated that he received the amount. 
Hawever, he did not remember what amount he received. He could only say that he • 
received at the rate of Rs 1 . 50 for printing of each copy. The other witness even did 
not mention what amount he received. The third witness :-.aid that though the 
MPCC(I) placed order and he delivered the printed lIuterials in the office of the MPCC 
(I), he did not receive any money. Though the printing work was done as far back 
in 1989 and th ough he did not receive money, there is n o  evidence to show that he 
made attempt to get the money. All these will only lead to one conclusion that the 
petitioners have not been able to prove that it was the MPee (I) who placed orders 
for printing the election materials as claimed. The evidence of all these witnesses 
could not prove at least the charge of corrupt practice. As held by the Supreme 
Court that when there is an oral testimony, the Court has to be very cautious in ac­
cepting. Unless it is proved with clear evidence supported by some doct:ments, it 
will be always unsafe to come to the conclusion that the re1urned candidate or his 
ag�nt or his party actually placed order for printing of those materials. Considering 
all these I come to the conclusion that the petitioners have miserably failed to prove 
that. the election materials were printed by those witnesses as per the erders placed. 

37. I have already held tltat the petitioners have not been able to prove that the 
election materials were printed at the instance of the MPCC (I). Even though the • 
petitioners failed to prove that the election materials containing offending statements 
were printed and published by the MPCC (I) or the returned caqdidates or their 
agents. It is now to be seen whether those election materials were used by the -returned 
oandidates or their agents or the MPCC (I). FOr this purpose I propose to deal the 
election cases separately. 

• 
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ELECTION PETITION NO. 7(G) OF 1989 

Saingnra -vs.- F. Sapa and others. 

Ex-89/95 

38. In this case apart from the COmmon witnesles LaltlarunaMa, C. Dinthanga 
• • and Lalzawmliana Seven more witnesses were examiruod. Out of the 7 witnes.es, 

election petitioner and 3 more witnesseS, namely, ulzara. Thangrenga and Ralliana 
were examined. 

39. Election petitio""r in hi. cvidollce atateG that he filed thia olc.tion petition on 
beine agarioved by tbe oorrup\ practice oommitted by tbe re'''''''dent No. I .  Accor­
ding to him, the ht r •• pondeDt made appeal to the voters to vote for him On the ground 
of religion throughout hi. cOnstituency. fl. came 10 knOW that !be 1st respondent • di,tributog pamphlets, l.aflets. otickets and other oampaigD literature. which cen­
tained ..-eligiou. appeal to tho voter. He had no personal knowlod,e of making 
religiou, appeal by Ih. ht respongent and &Iso that h. hali distributec;! Ihe aforesaid 
election mat.riall to the publ;'. H. furthor stated that at the time of filing tho elec­
tion petition he annexed those materials, namely, pamphlets, leaflets, stickers along 
with the English translation. He wa. informed about the distribution of the afore­
said election matorials by the lot respondont whil. addressing public meeting by 
Snri Ralliana, Shri Lalzara. 1hangrenga and Lianhmingthanga. According to him. 
the election materials were formally released by the then President, MPCC (I) Shri 
Lalthanhawla, presently Chief Minister of Mizotam at Vanapa flail, Aizawl some 
time it! the middle of December, 1988. He carne to know that the 1st tospondent was 

• also present at the said meeting at the time of releasing the aforesaid election materials. 
He was informed by Lalhmachhuana, Editor, Dingdi Daily and Lalnghakliana, 

• Elitor, Hriatna Oaily. He stated that election materials containing offending 
statements the 1st respondent made appeal to the voters on the ground of religion. 
Petitioner further stated that the 1St respondent addressed number of meetings in 
various places call1p,igning for his election between the periOd 31. 12.88 and 19.1 .89. 
Immediately before addressing the public meetinas, 1st respondent used to distribute 
the election materials to the voters gathered In the said public meetings. During the 
aforesaid period, I st respondent addressed public meetings and distributed the exhi­
bits, .etc. He speoifically stated that on 15 .1 .89 the 1st respondent addressed a public 
meetmg at about 3 P.M. at ChandmarJ, Lungle, before about 200 persons. 8efore 
adJressina the meeting, I st respondent himself distributed the election materials, 
n'\TtI,ly, le.tlets, pampnlets, e)eclH)O manifestos. sh�k.rs, etc. The 1st respondent 
agam addressed a pubhc meetlh� at Chandmarl, tung)., on 18.1.89 at about 10 A.M. 
before about 300 persons. SimIlarly. before addreSSing t\le publlc meetms the lst 
respondent distributed leaflets, pamphlets, stickers. etc. On 16.1 .89 also at about 
I I  A.M. the ht respondent aadressed a public meetinll before about 100 persons at 
Chandmari. Lungle!. Thero also before addressll1g the public meetillg. the I st res­
pondent dis!tihute� the leaflets, election mal1ifestos, pamphlets. stlckers. �. to tbe 

• volers. PetllIOner IS a quaUfied penon. He IS a holder of Master Deare. ,n Arts and 
also a 8ach�lor of law from GlIuhail University. He enrolled himself as an AdMeale 

• in 1977. Sinoe his enrolment he has been pra.:tlsing as all Advocate In Mlzaram. 
By �rore�slon be is a Politician-cum-Lawyer. fl. elllcred pot/tics In tbe year 1?8()"81 .  
Iii hlS eVidence It. further stated th6t he SaW F. Sapa hOldlnll tneetlng from a distance. 
tIe did I10t hear wltat he said. Ii. ,\1(\ t!Ot Sole F. Sapa distrlbutln.ll any materials. 
EXK 1'-1 serie! wa' published by MI'CC (1) willch he came to know fl'ODl information 
a. woll u ftom prlrtted matedals alld certffl�te$ Issued by the ptes._ He talldJdly 
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admitted that Ext. P-6 did not indicale' 'thht it I v.,as printed and published by 
MPCC(I). Ext. P-9 was the account register. Ext. P-9 did no; i ndicate whose book of a 

account it was. Serial No. 4 showed in column 1 - Descri)1tLOIY -Mizoram" Congress(J) 
,PVc: _ stickers,; Exc:ept -Jhis th�n�: . is n9thip.g ,t9, show that the order was placed by 
.MPCCm or by ihe ls{respqrident. J" crQi;�-examinalJcn he admitted tliat he did 
�ot. rp.eiltipn speCifi6ally �bo,utth�' corrup(1?niclice of bribery. un,due incluence, iudute- · • 
ment and attempt te) induce " the electors' to believe that Uley would be subject of 
displeasure on the ground of religion. 
40. - In -the evidence'of the petitioner only. fact that emerges is that the petitioner 
did not see that the returned candidate - ,the 1st respondent or his agent or MPCC (1) 
distributing the Ext. p, ,series containing tlw: .offending sta tcmcnts. His_ sole state­
ment is that he once saw F. Sapa holding)a meeting at Chandmari and he saw it On 
one day from a distance and at that time he did not hear wf1<;t he (1st respondent) had 
stated. He admitted that he did not see Sapa distributi ng any material. From this 
i t  is clear that this witness did not say anything about the d:"tribution of the election 
materials by 1st re5pon dent and making religious appeal :n the public meeting. 

41 . P.W. 2 Lalduhawma in his evidence did not make uny statement that the re­
turned candidate or his agent made any stat(;,:ment in public meeting making religious ,appeal. 
42. P.W. 3 L.H. Lian Hming Thanga stated that the Pre,ident of MPCC (I) Mr. 
Lalthanhawla released the pamphlets, stickers and banner:, officially at Aizawl on 16th 
December, 1988. He received those in the capacity c-f the General SecretalY in 
bulk. On receipt of those he sent them 'to the scvtn ':dndidates inch.di ng tim • 
for distribution in their respective constituencies 0 r l_unglei District. ] n  his 
constituency he distributed those materials to the \\-:orb�rs '1nd that he also pcr- " 
sonally distributed them in his constituencies to the \- O l c r � .  Mr. Sap a contested 
election as Congress (1) candidate. There were sever; cI>llstituencjes in Lungki 
District. Sapa himself distributed the election materials to the public in his presem_c. 
The petitioner was a candidate from 8th Lunglei South C(ltl.\lltuency a5. MNF candi-
date wherefrom Mr. Sapa also contested election as a CC-t dLiidate from Congress (l). 
Mr. Sapa won the election. In his cross-exarriination he � i.'ltcd that he was a contr2c-
tor and was in Congress (I). He)eft the Congress (I) F8 1 1 >  on 6th of October, 19�O 
be'cause of the conflict of ideals. He had difference (If G i " nion with- paIty leado:, 
like Lalthanhawla. In cross-examination he also sjatcc Lhn he told Sainfula, tte 
�lectjon petitionc( before and after election that -he sa\-v Sar\,-, distributing the election 
·.in lterjals himself. He specifically remembered the d,lY,  Il", me1y, on 15th January, 
)),89. · It was arciuud 3 P�M. Both F. Sapa dist�ibutcd tb,  " lection materials at the 
. tesid�nce of Mr. Sapa. Abqut ,200 people were preSeT!l lhere. He visite9 Sapa's 
office. on 15. 1.89 "'(th Z.D. Sangliana, Ex-MLA ; L.P. ThoTI,!zika, MLA and F. Lal­
·clur·.vna, Ex·MLA. li9wever, he did �ot remember othCi- ·;lates. During ' last' ckc-
i<-t\�n .1'1NF also ·distributed. and pu�li�h�d pamphlets and .other electjor-, �a�erjal� . 
. _TIie sym'QoI of MNF waS tIger. . ThIS witness� however, �,'l1d that Sa'pa ,dlstflb�ted • 
'elec.�bn�ri1atetials in �he,publis:. �ut ,he was at that time u. member of the MPCC (I) 
. a,nd l�ft th.e Cougre'ss in J 990' .. ':9.11e thing tcrbe ;rloted here h that this witp.ess. informed · 
' ¥9H,�t. t,h� -di.s!H��tjo? of �he',/dfferidfng . el�ctj9nl materia1s rke Ex�. P sel:I�s to t�e 
, ,�\�!Jon, ; pe���!Qr�r- ,�efor� and ,caft7r. �l,ec�IOn< , . However, t�e t:lectlQ". pet�tJo�er dJd 
rPJ?t.��ke- �,ny; �tep:!e�,!r��ng tb� ,4Jstf1butlq� 'oF t�9�e matCrfa! . . ,!h�. - matter was nO,t 
",�rRN�t. \qpfe 

,
�9JJce-

.
pf the E!�ctIOn. C:ommlsslRJ}-. e�tJ:cr,by thIs wlt,ness or by t�� el�c-

bon petItIOner. - He only remembered that he vlslteo·-F. Si:lP::-l'S office on 1 5:1.89 WIth 



• • 

• 

• 
• 

21 Ex- 89t95 

some persons. , OuTing th_c said election MNF also, distributed. aud ,pL;blished P3:m-' 
phlets and materjals, however, he did not remember. ·  Front 'the evJdedce ot this 
wifness, it appears to me that he is' an interes�ed party and he left the �otfgress Party 
and, therefore, iiI all probability, he may have a grudge on the' Congress Party as well 
as the retu'"ned candi4att. The oral testimony of this witnt"Ss cannOt be accepted on 
this' ground aione. Besides, from his evidence it, appears that he reportC'.d - the matter 
to the election petitioner before the election and also 'after " th'e' eltctiuti. ''if (hat was 
SO, it was the doty 0'( the elcl:tion petitioner or this witnc�s to' inform .:thc. ]r authority 
about the distribution of the dection materia1s containing the o,:ttending statements. 
43. Lalzara is another wjtness. In his evidence he stated thatif. Sa:pa'pi� electiQn 
campaign in his constituency by organising meetings. He (Sa'pa)' opened a c-dmpaign 
office at his residence and used to give out lectures. etc. He c3IT)e to -know that Sapa 
was going t� address a "ublic meetmg and aCfotliing!fhe attend�d the \:neeting. Sapa 
orgamscd a pubhc meetmg o.n 1 8th January, 1989.' About 150 to 200 people attended 
the said meeting. In the meeting Sapa distributed the party manifest6);, stickers alld 
pamphlets. Sapa himself addressed the public' meeting and distributed election ma­
terials. He identified Exts. P-l ,  P-2 and P-3 were like the election materials distri­
buted by F. Sapa. Exts. P-5 and 1-10 were the pamphlets and Ext. P,� was the 
stIcker. In the. public meeting Sapa explained the 'conteri��.-,!1f the dotun:tent� ¥od 
,also stated that ]f Congres,s ,Part� was vot.;:d to P?W�f, t�ey ,WduldJorm 'a 'ChtlSllj\TI 
Government. He had also receIved the aforesaid electIOn' matenals. Three days 
aftcI: the puhli,c �eet!ng he reported abou� that mat�er to -tl�e ele��ion petiti�:mer. 
rn hlS cross-exammatlOn he !stated that he dJd -not belong to any pol}t\caJ pa� .. 3t the 
time of election. He attended Congress Party meeting only on' 18.1 .89. :He drd not 
attend any meeting organised by the election petitioner Saingtjr.i' or any other po1iticaJ 
party. He did not remember the date of counting or date 'of election. .fie 'did hot 
read the entire election manifesto, but he had gone through some portions 6f it and 
in that portion of the manifesto he saw the promise of Christian Government, journey 
to Holy Land, giving Rs. 1 0,000/- and G.c.!. sheet roofings to the poor. He did not 
report the matter to P.C.P. candidate B. Lalchungnunga. H� also did not report to 
the 3rd candidate. The election petitioner asked, l1itn to give evid�nce as he reported 
about the meeting. He also 'had not come across , election manjfesto of any 'other 
party. I t is apparent from the evidence of this witness that he attended the meeting 
of F. Sapa only on one day. Except the election petitioner he did not report the mat­
ter to any other party or authority. What was the reason for his infof1l)ing to the 
election petiti�ner is .a!so not know:r;t. He has. not exp�ained wh� he chose 't9 i�orm 
only the electlOn pelItJOner. Even If the electIon petItlOner was Informed, he dId not 
take any step. This is also another piece of oral testimony which is inconsistent and 
not acceptable in view of the fact that he only chosed the _el�ction petitioner even 
though he did not belong to MNF Party. For all these above, the testimony' of this 
witness cannot be accepted. 
44. P.W. 5 Thangrenga stated that on 16.1 .89 he attended ,a meeting of F. Sapa. 
About tOO people were present in the meeting. F. Sapa distributed the ejection mani­
festo, stickers, pamphlets containing offending materials like " Operation Josua." He 
identified the Exts. P-l ,  P-2.and P-3 were the election manifesto dj,;tribu!ed by ESapa. 
Ext. P-5 and Ext. P-IO were the pamphlets distributed by Sapa, . Ext .. P-6 was the 
sticker distributed by Sapa . .  He also stated that after distribution of the said election 
materials, Mr. Sapa delivered lecture in the meeting. In his address Sapa said" that 
if they were elected to power, they would form a Christian G�)lernment. 2/3 days 
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After the aforesaid meeting he met the petitioner and showed the election materials. However, he did not 
mention where he met and what was the occasion of his meeting. This witness in his cross-examination 
stated that he did not remember exactly about who were the other three candidates. He also did not 
remember the date. In his cross-examination he specifically stated that he did not read the entire 
manifesto. He could only read the portion which contained the offending portion. It is not at all believeable 
that a person receiving a manifesto would find out only the offending portion and leave other portions. The 
natural course would have been to go through the entire paper and thereafter he would come to know 
about the offending materials. 

45. P.W. 6 Ralliana also in his evidence stated that he was a shop keeper and her knew the election 
petitioner and the 1st respondent. From the evidence of this witness also it is not proved beyond doubt that 
the Respondent No. 1 the returned candidate or his agent or his party i.e. MPCC (I) ever distributed the 
election materials containing the offending statements. From his evidence, it cannot be accepted that 
Respondent No. 1 – the returned candidate made public meeting appealing voters on the ground of religion 
as alleged. 

46. Witness Lalnghakliana (PW 7) deposed that he was a journalist. He was the editor of a weekly 
newspaper known as ‘HRIATNA’. He stated that on 16th of January, 1989 the Congress party organized a 
public meeting at Vanapa Hall at Aizawl. In the said meeting Congress President Lalthanhawla had released 
the election manifesto and other two numbers of election materials out of which he clearly remembered 
“the election manifesto” and one pamphlet titled “OPERATION JOSUA” This witness attended that meeting 
and the MPCC (I) President handed over to him (this witness) the booklets released by him. When he 
opened those books he read the contents like – if Congress (I)party was elected to power it would form a 
Christian Government and the school text books would also be made to suit the Christian teachings and “a 
visit to holy land by as many as possible.” He further stated that he would be able to identify those 
booklets. He identified Exts. P-1 and P-5 as those materials out of the election materials out of the election 
materials released by Lalthanhawla. He informed Mr. Saingura about this and he showed him and asked 
him to read. He remembered it was 2/3 days afterwards. This witness stated as a Journalist he covered MP 
election in 1991, General election in 1989 and another MP election in 1989. Before 1989 he did not cover 
any election. He knew as a Journalist it was his duty to cover all the election meetings of different political 
parties. He attended the first meeting held by the political parties before the election. He did not 
remember the date and time of the meeting held by the Mizo National Union Party. He also stated that he 
could remember only the date and time of the Congress party meeting and he did not remember the date 
and time of the meetings of other political parties in which he took part. This witness further stated that he 
did not attend the meeting held on 16.1.89 organised by the Congress but he attended the meeting of the 
Congress (I) on 16.12.88. There were other journalists who also attended the meeting. They were-T. 
Lalhmachhuana, Dingdi Editor and R. Ral Tawna, Zonieng Editor. From his evidence also it appears that he 
remembered the date and time of election meeting of the Congress (I) party and the release of election 
materials by MPCC (I) President. He did not remember anything about the other political party. In another 
question put by the learned counsel for the 1st respondent, he stated that he did not remember where he 
was on 18th/19th December, 1988. He also did not go the Lunglei South during that period. This witness also 
stated that he showed the election materials given by Mr. Lalthanhawla to many persons, but he did not 
remember their names. 
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He remembered only the election petitioner. He further stated that it was their prac-tice to give to those 
people whom they knew. He also asked other people to read the materials given to him by Lalthanhawla. 
By asking the people to read the materials given to him by some one, he did not consider that he was 
working for him. He remembered the name of one Chalchhunga to whom he had given the papers given to 
him by the MNF. He received the election manifesto of the Peoples Conference Party. He did not 
remember to whom he gave those materials. Election petitiones Saingura told him in the month of March 
and April, 1989 that he had filed a case in the High Court. The election petitioner requested him to give 
evidence. He came to know that 12 cases were filed in the Court. He further stated that he could remember 
the date on which the MPCC (I) President Lalthanhawla distributed the election materials on 16 December, 
1988, but he did not remember about the other election meeting which he attended. This witness, 
however, did not remember anything regarding election campaign of other parties. He did not remember 
where he was immediately after the meeting that was said to be held in Vanapa Hall. 

 The oral testimony of this witness is also very doubtful in as much as this witness did not remember 
anything about the other meeting which he attended. Besides, according to this witness he spoke to many 
people and asked them to read. But he did not remember who were those. He also stated that the election 
materials i.e. Ext. P-1 and Ext. P-5 which were received from one of the workers of the Congress Party was 
handed over to the election petitioner Saingura. It is really strange that, though the election petitioner 
received those materials containing offending articles making religious appeals, the election petitioner did 
not take any step in this regard. From all these it is difficult to accept the statement of this witness also. 

47. 1st respondent examined two witnesses, namely, himself and one Smson Zo-ram Thanga. In his 
evidence the 1st respondent stated that neither he nor his worker distributed election materials like Ext. P 
series. He, however, admitted that he distributed election materials other than those like Ext. P series. He 
denied release of any election materials at Vanapa Hall by Lalthanhawla in the middle of December, 1988 
and his presence in that meeting,. In his cross-examination he stated that though he did not distribute any 
election materials, namely, pamphlets, stickers, etc. published by his party, his workers distributed them on 
4.1.89. His party leader in Aizawl had sent the election materials to his constituency for distribution. He did 
not know how the aforesaid election materials reached his constituency because he did not have time. He 
saw those election materials. He did not give any instruction to his workers to distribute the election 
materials in the village by going house to house. In fact he did not give any instruction to his workers to 
distribute the election materials during the election. His other witness was Samson Zoram Thanga 

48. Samson Zoram Thanga (RW 2) stated in his evidence that he joined politics in 1974. He joined 
Congress (I) Party in the same year and ;remained till then. The last General election was held on 21st of 
January, 1989. He belonged to Lunglei South Constituency. During the last election he was one of the 
Secretaries of Lunglei District Congress (I) Committee. At the time of deposition he was the General 
Secretary of the said District F. Sapa was a candidate from Congress (I) party in the last General election. 
This witness further stated that he told the workers to work for the victory of the Congress (I) Party, to go 
to the people and to ask them to  
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vote for the Congress (1). He was entrusted to look after tL� campaign. During the 
campaign he alongwith the worker.s went arollnd the COnSl!l uency. put up banners, 
posters, fastoons, etc. and also distributed to the public man ift;�tos, badges, cap ,(head 
gear); stickers, etc. Some times he used to acc�mpany lhe I s l  respond�nt Mr. S�pa 
during his [rip to the constituency. Ext. P senes were not [hose electIOn mater!ah. 
which wefe distributed. Those documents (Ext. Pseries) lH: had seen for the first tIme __ • 
on the date of recording the evidence. He did not remember if he was with Sapa on 

1 5th and 16th of January, 1989, but he definitely remembele"i that he was with Sapa 
on 1 8th J anuary, 1989 and on that day both the 1st respondc;:t �;nd he went to a village, 
namely, Hauruang. For the whole day of 18.1 .89 from mOflling 6.30/7 A.M. till the 
evening he was with 1 st respondent. The 1st respondenl and he remained there for 

- the whole day and returned thereafter . This witnes�, denied that 1 st responot.nt 
addressed a public meeting on 1 8. 1 .89 -at 10 A.M. before 011 �Iudiance at Chandmari, 
Lunglei. He further staed that the 1 st respondent did 1101 hold any pubhc meelinb 
during the entire period of campaign. According to this \\- ii.,lCS:) the distance beti'ecn 
Chandmari and Hauruang village would be about 1 7/ 1 8  K .1\15 This \vitness stated 
that the" lst respondent (Sapa) conducted his elec�ion carnp.ifl1 from the Lunglei Dis-
trict Congress H.Q. 'office situated at Venglai. I n  \3ross-exaIviiIatjon this witness also 
stated that the meetings held during the campaign did r.ot lJ - ,C "lu last for more than an 
hour. In such meetings they discussed about the pro�reCt c!f election of Sq::-a.  In  
those meetings they used to tell to the voters that if Congl C�" (I) was voted t o  power 

· then various developmental activities would be taken up.  , ' fter the meetings they 
usually handed over the election materials to the Unit le,-\(lr.:rs for dlstribut]oD, Those 

relection materials included election manifestos, stickers, :)(; m r,hlets, banners, roster:o:., 

badges, caps and- flags. He further stated that he alongvi l 1 h  other workers distribu­
ted the aforesaid election materials in those places whet't S;' ,)3 did not accompany 
them. Mr. Sapa and he saw the aforesaid election materia l:. together. Sometimes . 
they carried those materials with them and distributed then�. He also carried the 
aforesaid election materials to those places where Mr. SapE did not accompany. 

49. From reading of the evidence of these witnesse� i i. ,-' fipears that both the 1 st 
respondent as well as the other witness Sri Samson Zoram fnanga totally denied the 
distribution of Ext. P series. According to them they dcfinhely attended their elec­
tion meetings. In those meetings they told to the voters ,) bout the various develop­
mental works that they would undertake. They denied th,l t Ext. P series was ever 
distri buted. In fact the 1 st respondent did not distribute ;)ny election materials. It 
was the workers who used to distribute the election mate rials those were publisbed 
by their party. These witnesses totally denied the allegations made about the distri­
bution of the election materials like Ext. P series. 

50. In an election petition where the ground is corrupt practice by appealing the 
voters it is t�e burden of the petitioner to prove the case beyond reasonable doubt. 
From the eVidence of the witnesses for the petitioner it is -rot clear that election rna-" 
terials, namely, Ext. P series were distributed by the 1 st respondent or his agent Or 
other workers. It has not been properly proved. Besidn· most of the witnesses " 

examined on behalf of the petitioner earlier belonged to the Congress Party and they 
left. the C.ongress Party and j�jned MNF. For these reasons it is difficult to accept 
theIr �erslOns and on the basIs of oral testimony the verdict of the people cannot be 
set aSIde. 

• 

• 
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5 1 .  In view of the above, I am constrained to hold that the petitioner has not been 
.l>le lo prove that the election materials had been distributed by Respondent No. I ,  
'or his ag,:mt or his party. I t  is also not proved that- Respondent No. 1 held public 
meeting where he made religious appeal. 

52. ' Mr. Bhattacharyya, learned counsel for the petitioners submitted ths.t :when 
some evidence are adduced by the petitioner alleging corrupt practice by appealing the 

' voters on the basis of religion then mere denial by the returned candidate \\-as not 
. enough.- There should be some more positive evidence. In my opinion, as -held in 
various decisions of the Apex Court the election cannot be upset without thel:e being 
some acceptable evidence. Burden remains with the petitioner to prove jt;st like 
criminal case beyond reasonable doubt and if that is not done then in that case i t  would 
be difficult to upset the electioll. In view of that I am of opiJ?ion that �he election 
petitioner nas totally failed to prove the cas� of corrupt practIce comn�ltted �y . the 
retu-rned candidate - 1st respondent by appealIng to the voters on the basIs of rehglOn. 
As [ ,havl! already- held that the Ext. P series no doubt contain religious appeal, but the 
faet that i t  has been printed by the returned candidate or by his agent or by person 
with his instruction but there is no proof that these were printed and distributed by 
the Respondent No. 1 ,  his agents or workers. Therefore, the ele�tiol1 materials con­
taining offending articles were printed at the instance of retu'ned cnndidate or lUs 
agent or any person with the knowledge and consent of the returned candidt tc and 
the distribution of those materials have not been proved beyond doubt. Therefore, 
the election cannot be set aside. 

ELECTION PETITION NO. �(G)/89. 

H. Lalruata vs. Van-lalnghaka & others. 

53. - In this petition the petitioner examined 9 witnesses in total. The petitioner 
" ;ad�uced about 29 documentary evidence containing offending writings in Ext. P 

- , Senes. 

54. . P. W. 1 L.H. Lian Hming Thallga tried to prove the distribution of the election 
materials. He st.ted that on 1 6th December, 1989 the President of MPCC (I) Mr. 
Lalthanhawla released the pamphlets, stickers, banners offkially at Aizawl. He re­
ceived, those in the capacity of General Secretary in bulk. On receipt of those he sent 
them to the seven candidates including him for distribution to their constitliencie�. 
:In his . . conitituency he distributed those materials to the party workers and he pcr­
st1nally distributed them in his constituency. Mr. Vanlalnghaka contested ·as ·Cong­
ress (I) candidate from 1 2th Hnahthial Constituency. There were seven cOll&titu(;f1-

· ' -_·_des :itt Lunglei District. Ext. P-I, Ext. P-2 and Ext. P-3 were the- election m" nikstos 
. is'ued by the C(}ngress (I). Ext. P-4 is a pamphlet "Operation Josua" is>u<d by 

. MPCC (I), Ext. P-6 was al,o the election p.mphlet issued by th" MPCC (1). The 
aforesaid documents 'he received from the MPCC (I) for the purppose of distribution. 
In cross-examination he stated that he was a 3rd Class contractor. He left Congress 
(I) party on 6th October, 1 990. He left the Congress Party because of conflict of 

'ideals. He also stated that he was the General Secretary v,hen he joined MNF. 
During the last election he worked for the victory of himself and his p�rty i..c. the 

' Congress (I). He wanted to secure development of Mizorr:TIl by running the- election. 
, , ' Normally all the Mizos are Christians. So to win over their sentiments they promi� 
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sed establishment of a Christian Government. By Christian Government they meant that the Congress 
Government would be run according to the ethics, principles and morals of Bible. By morals, principles 
and ethics of Bible he meant that the Government would be working for the welfare and betterment of 
the people. There are about 8 to 10 thousand voters in his constituency. In his constituency for 20/30 
days. He visited all the 7 constituencies. This witness also could not say when actually the meeting took 
place. He also could not say anything about the other meetings. 

55. P.W. 8 Pazaa stated that he was a cultivator by profession. On 12.1.89 the 1st respondent 
addressed a public meeting at Thingsai at about 7 PM before an audience of about 150 persons in his 
own residence. The 1st respondent before addressing the public meeting distributed the election 
materials like manifestos, pamphlets, stickers, etc. by himself. He also received the aforesaid materials. 
After finishing his supper he went to attend the meeting addressed by 1st respondent. After distribution 
of the aforesaid election materials, the 1st respondent explained about the contents of the election 
materials. The 1st respondent appealed the audience that if they voted for Congress (I) they would form a 
Christian Government. 1st respondent spoke many things regarding development. But he did not 
remember those statements. Election materials were in Mizo language. Ext. P-1 to p-6 were the election 
materials similar to those distributed in the said meeting. After few days of the election result was 
declared he went to Hnahthial for his personal work and the petitioner was residing at Hnahthial in 
rented house. While he was passing through the road, the petitioner called him from his house. He went 
to the house of the petitioner. The petitioner enquired of that in spite of so many MNF sumpathisers in 
Thingsai village why the petitioner lost the election. He told the petitioner that because respondent No. 1 
made an appeal to the people that if they were voted to power they should form Christian Government 
and that might be the reason. Because of this the petitioner lost the election on enquiry the said witness 
handed over the election materials which he received. That was after few days on his next visit to 
Hnahthial. He handed over the election materials to the petitioner. In his cross-examination he stated 
that results were declared on 23rd of January, 1989. He did not belong to any political party. He did not 
know the total number of voters in his village. He cast his vote in the last election. He did not know 
whether MNF secured more votes than the Congress. He believed that there were MNF office at his 
village. This witness also did not say that he attended any other meeting. He also stated that the did not 
remember whether there was any other public meeting by the candidate of MNU or PC. He did not 
remember the date on which the MNF meeting was held. This witness only stated that on receipt of the 
election materials he read the contents, He further stated that he could not remember what was written 
in the manifesto as it was long back except about the Christian Government. The witness was shown Ext. 
P-1 to P-6 and he stated that he could not clearly read them because of his poor eye sight. He was living 
with his wife and children. He told the members of his family what was written in the election materials. 
They appreciated the promise about the Christian Government. However, he did not discuss about the 
election manifesto with any person of his village as all the villagers had received them. He did not 
remember the date on which he met the petitioner after the election. He also could not remember the 
date on which he handed over the election 
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materials to the p,�titio'1cr. Til <; is (]n�)ner \vitncss who stated that he only attended 
the ill�z:jnQ held o n  1 2. ;  .89, I e  i - L', lL� c!C'ction petitioner after the results were 
out only b�:' dL' ;J':':' ,lf� : 't1;  ,C," ,  il'':: ; 0 . ; (  . �  ',' ut th::: distri bution of the election materials 
and {l')p�al !nadt- �)y , ' We I :;t " ,:;-;',-'i' -td;�i':L Hi the basis of rehgion . On the request of 

• • the p-�lj[jo:lcr h,;; lU'1·,i_�>! ,_j'r�( lll'� ':;":I..' �il'_) 1 :1dnifcsto and pamphlets, etc. which were 
dhuib:.J leci bv tIle I ,, !.- ;' �s ':C;J ldi>l1. \.'1" ; l ;S :" ',:nt on 12. 1 .  89. This witness did not remem· 
bel' wh...:(hcr he dite�:  L;,L' !r. () ��1'::r ;11�,: : i� ; ,::. He fu ?thcr stated (f--.;tt he did not remem­
ber when he mel the p:';>om:;,- ( � : ! ( ;  i:(;\, nuny days after he handed over. This 
sho\vs tiyl'l uiis \Vitne�" ·, cO' .. l!d , c:'.:1t:r(;i-;" t only one day - the day on whkh the mate­
ria ls were distributed ::-,y t�1f. 1 :;t :" ,:::;�,,-"'nd�'11 or his agent. But regarding the other 
meeting:; h'� was lb'.;()!utdy iCr10)';i(1t. l-f,;: co;_� id not st2.tc the place where the election 
meetings \\'C1'I-,; !,c' !d by YfT\;;'- :-ud oth�!- pi;JtJ �S ,  He further stated that he could not 
give the date 0!1 \vhidi :J� h t;'G '(: O', .J i h f'  cL�,tion materials. This witness also could 
not read Ext. P-J to P-6 \V,lfJ, ; ' i,,:: ,�e 'Sf , "  S ;l own as he had poor eye sight. The evi ... 
J;;nce of tilts wi tn:;-s<; js snrourkd v,,: id-I j',"_tb1 in as mucb a') he could only say the 
exact d:th� on which �l�e meeting W<l� hrld by the 1 st respondent. 

• 

t 

56. P.W. 9 Cha1thlH�ma is another witness for the election petitioner. In his evi­
dence he stated that he Was !l.- businessman by profession, The 1 st respondent 
addressed a meeting on 14.1 .89 ai: abou t 6. �O P.M, at Chcrhlun before an audience 
of about 200 pej-so�ns . This witnc,s also similarly stated that the 1st respondent and 
his party distributed election f!1,1 1 eri[l!'i l ike Ext. P-l to P-6. Prior to the election he 
met the pet itiona as ;1e w?') the Pastor of United Penticostal Church, After the 
clectj ·)]} reslIlts \',ere dechred i,,� I�Kt the pC1;tioner. He met petitioner after the de-

.... claration of election . He put ! l ;" i !1  a house t=rnporarily which was close to the rented 
house' of the petitioner. I ll.  co".�··C\�aminatjon he stated that he did not belong to 
1.ny p,)litica] party, he did n u (' remetl1ber th" date on which he met the election peti­
tioner after the dec�jim, he did 110t rem��lTIr ' T  the date on which he went to Hnah­
thial after the f,;<;Ult of the el':':�linn was lIed. red. He did not remember the date on 
which he met t11(,' p�tj t.ioner bcfor� the ck:ct: on, the petitioner did not visit his place 
during the election c�Fr1i1aig'l. Four candidates belonging to MNF, Congress (I). 
PCB 1.nd :vlNU conj,'j"tcd the ckctiol1. M'''�F and Congress (I) only called public 
mectil1gs. PC �1'lrty did not hold J i ly clecti·)n meeting. He could not tell the date 
and time when T'l"lNF held i ts  me\�iini-' but it -,,'IaS at night time. He only attended 'the 
meeting of the CL)ng;-c�,<; (J) �� ;ld r,:) other mt)eting. He did not know if MNF, PC 
and other candid(!�f:5 rl-i')lributp·j ,-l,�y election materials. There were MNF workers 
In his vil'lage. He k l l'�W n'(:.;�1. :�;i1':C it wa\ long time he did not remember if MNF 
w0rkers attended the m;.':'.:;linp; 1:  i 11::1" time. He is also another witness who could 
rcm�mber (J1lly t;'];; dw, . ..! v/I1('n -, :1';· 1 'it respondent held the meeting and distributed the 
eL;.::;�ion m(]tcri:tl'., lik� Ex�,  P-I 1/) P-I). Thi . witne�� stated that the MNF also held 
the m'=e�illgs but he di -�. ,1\)[ �ltl":�nd.  He al�o stated that other political parties also 
held m�etin(:" bul. h:� d : ..-!. W)t ;lq'�nd t�l:-r'1, (--Ie did not remember to have attended 
th� nli�eti!1gs of ; he ":,INF 'Y!,>'!,y. ; Ie al'lo had no knowledge whether MNF party 

• di� lributed ekcti<'l1 rn.d ��r;·!.h li\,C' -:=2'"ts P - I  t(· P-6. This witness i s  also'a chance wit­
nC:is. He md tile de;�th:1 netii.ioner o r iv " fter the election was over. He met the 
ek�tion petiti0ner and told hj�'1 that th ·� ' l s t respondent had distributed the election 
maierials. Th<1cl�h ht: kll�W t�L�j t11ero were many MNF party workers in his village 
he ::tid llOt C;ttc to infor'll th�;�1 ;-t;yut th � dt'.tribution of the ejection materials by the 
CO:1gress (r). Th�s witn�5S furtll'�r stateJ th"lt though he met the election petitioner 
before the election he did not mentiDn about the distribution of p:lmphlets. He 'only 
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i;'1formd. h:i m .J.ftE"r the ckction W:JS ovc. Fwn the reading of , 1 :c evidence it appears 
tbat he is aL:') similar tyr;::: of wit:.�<:<ss who jj'{i:01y could rtl11tn'tc: the election meeting 
held by the l\1PCC(J). He also could r,;cq:,;lisc Exts. P-l 10 P-6. In my opinion, 
evidence of this witECt,S is _10t acceptable. • 

57.  1 st r-.�:;p()n(kl1J. �ls(, ex: rrlincc hms.:!f. He:: totaHy Jenied about the disttiru­
tj�.1l1 of f-:� eI...'�tion -L.,.,1_·�ri �_1�; ! ;L.e [x1. P serje'�- , He scid rfitt-c�' he- TIN his palty pub­
Ii:,hed all those docur. __ {_�ts. .t., is  case \-vas tot21Jy den!? ! .  Even L: �tated that he never 
attended �:r;y elec tion ;i:et:ting during his c8mp;;lirn. P. .. -:: only attended a 
public ,,\1'��t:ng in 1 ':C �,7 which ", as not cor,nected \yitt the pr(�ent electien. 

58. In thi.;; case J.lso the ev:den('c recorded by the l:Jctitioncr regarding distribution 
of the article'), in my opir::i03�, _'JIlS ilot been proved br:yeild rrs sonable doubt as is 
r.;�quired. Tfle r(":;!)Ond�llt h3.'ljpg denied so, it w�\s th: duly oj the petitioner to prove 
the distri�ution cf (;1t;ctic!:. r.mterials containing (he ofr(ndij'�t: statements beyond 
reJ.sonable doubt. As the rf:fi Lior'27 l as totally failed to prmc that the respondent 
No.1 distributed thQs�� c!eclion materials aNl m8.de public q:cf(-h to woo the voters 
on the ground of religicn. 

58. ELECTION PETITION No.9(G)/89 

(Lc.lhlimpuii - vs-Rosangliana and Others) 

In this case the petitioner e;:amined as many as 9 witnesses including election pe­
titioner. P\�l 7- J. Laltlannla'A'ia, PVl 8-C Dinthang8, P\'" 9- Ldzawmliana and also 
PW 4 - Lail1gliakliana are the four witnesses common in ali  the cases. Petitioner 
examined P\V 2 L9Jbana, PW··5 Oosnnga and PW 6- VRnla1l3"\'l1�a to prove the distri­
bution of tl-·.e election materials by the petitioner or his (1 [.ent ir the meeting held on 
different dates and gave public speech making religiovs ::;P[(;-: : .  P'W-I is the election 
petitioner. He tried tf) prove his case regarding the indulgint: ( , ( cornlpt f,raclice by 
the 1st respondent. The 1st respondent examined three wdriC�SCS, 113mely. R.W.1 
Rosanglian2_ - P�espondent himself, R\V 2, C. Lalrinpui;. ZtlH:, RW-3 Thangthuama 
regarding canvassing. 

59. Now from the evidence of the witnesses. it is to be �;'en \'''hcther the election 
petitioner h.ls been able to prove that those election materi?h, fxt. P-I to P-6 series 
containing 1-r..e offending matt rirJs wel"e distributed ei1he:' hy tl,e returned candidate 
R-1 or by bis :\g:�nt or by !1i� party or any one dnl�,' atllhc!-j,.I (� by the retitioncr. 
Accordinr,: to tl)e petition�r he- was informed by his wjtr1t'��"e�- l J.:Jl tbC' returned candi­
date i.e. the 1s� rcsDondent in the publ ic meeting said th2t th�} would form a Chris­
tian Governm�"1� :::,::1d pro·/j�� opportunity to visit the Foly Ln�cl ("Jerus2h:m"). every 
year they w{)111d �ive R'3. 10,OrO/-, they would change the sylL'hv� cfthe school accor­
di!13 to the lnE�'f of the Christian doctrine. Each one of thon \'. 0vld also get corrug­
ted sheets. Th0se W-3re th.e nain point� of the witnesses. A J 1  tl:c wjtnc�<-es tdd him 
the same th ;nz. [n his examha�ion-in-chief the petitionrr sto.1ed tb:�t the 15t resron­
dent made widf: distribution of election literatures Ext P-I to P-(� series . He read out 
those in public m'?'etin,f! and Fisited e?ch hou�e and read tho':';' (Jnd expJained them. 
Those were distribl1t-=d in hugf: number to the people to read .  J-'(.  '"''','!TIted to !'8_y that 
MPCC (I) was a State Unit of the All India Congress (I) a J1d knee MPCC (I) was 
connected with the AICC (I). Therefore, the statement of the 1 st respondent that 

• 

• 
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he was not a candi.date of l\lPCC (1) was not correct. F.CtHc1illg the dish h.;t i( n of 
the offending materials next t'-i to P-6 this witness did n o t  sec \'fLo \y�,:; j"cI '{'Laily 
present in meeting. He also did not give the s01Jrc5� or h1,S infc, ;

,
111atiop. HOVl l,\{"�', 

• jn cross-examination he stated that he kncv .. - about th� nok.ilig 01 n�eetmg by �he. l st . 
respondent through line witnesses. He- did not kll.oW p�r::'()Jl:il�y J E  ;:11� ?(;�ll�nmg. 
but his witnesses who were from those areas where the -publJC ;neetmg:; \,.crc : ;�:d mfo : ­
med about it. He filed the election petition himself. I-L: fcs::ived the i !1 i"nrrr'},l!011 f,om 
his witnesses. Since his house was far away from the c0l1)tit i..1CT'CY, I , e  �, !t  I re mate­

rials from the witnesses. Nonc of those witnesses ml'�lcd was relatrd Lo him: l�� 
belonoed to Mizo National Front Party. From Hk tyiciellC(; of tilis wilI�'�:-s i l  wlil 
appea.c; that he was lwt !-"rescnt at any time when the: _'.st f:spc:ndcnt, Le. the rtturncd 

candidate held the meetings. He was only informed !)j hl� \-\lllnes�·cs. }-'or Ih;:�l pur-4I';ose it is to be s'��n llOW f�,r the oth�r \vitncsscs had been able t() rJn)\e those fnels. 

• 
• 

• 

60. PW-2, Lalbana stated in his evidence tbat 11e belong(d to Sihrhil' 'S'  vj ! iOf�.C. 
He knew about the election campaign of 1 st respondent. He hntw tl ::t on 12th 1en­
nuary 1989 a meeting was held at Sihphjr oS'. He, hc,we\'er, did not ki cw who called 
the m�eting and there were lot of people. There w .. s Cpngress (I) c!cction 0�ce hy 
the side of the road where meeting was held plus other party offices al�(l. He 1 1ste-ned 
what was said in the public meeting. Many persons !,(lid '!llany thipr.s .  Hov,evC'.r, 
he did not know the persons. The I st respondent was there In the meet1ng. He saId 
what was written in the election manifesto. Apart from the electi(ll1 manifc5to he 
saw election sticker. He saw also election manifesto but could not say exactly ""hieh 
40ne amongst those shown to him as seen by hilT'. as he did not have a copy of the same. 
He told the election petitioner that a public meeting was he>ld and there were n1any 
people who spoke about the election manifesto. The 1 st respondent told in the meeting 
that if he was elected as Congress (I) candidate, it will be good f01" Mizoram. 
He saw the election materials but did not have a copy. H,� saw many copy distribu­
ted, but he did not recognise tho'ie papers. This \vitncss did not say anything 
against the returned candidate the l st respondent because he said only one statement 
that the 1 st respondent stated that if he was voted to power it would good for Mizoram 
He did not say anything about the offending materials. J find he wa!-i very. 
specific that he did not remember what was the election materials distrihuted in the 
said meeting. 

6 1 .  PW-5, R. Dosanga was anoth��r witness for election petitioner. The e lection 
petitioner attempted to prove the distribution of the Flection material!' Ext. P-I to 
Ext. P-6 containing offending statements. {n his evider.::-e PC also stated that he knew 
the nature qf the campaign of Congress (I), Mr. Ro,:?ng!i;)lHi opendcd his eIe-ctio," 
campaign office on 1 1 . 1.89 in the building of 1\1r. Than.kunga. He furtber stated that 
on the date when the public meeting was held there were ahout 1 50 to 200 people 
present. Mr. Rosangliana delivered a speech and r�f1d out the election materiaJs 

I;nd paT11phIG�s. etc.
, 

At first the pam1)�let.s, m'-lllifi�s�{).� 8Gre relea<;ed hy )!.'tr Rosang­

liana. r l � � � l(D:.', t 1 �  S1m� were dlstnbtlt<.!d by ,113 �):1rty workers to the people 
They also distributed sticker. Exts P-l .  P-2 and P-3 w<)re distributed in the said 
meeting. In addition to that Ext. P-4 W\<; .1'''0 di�t;"ii:)ll�f)d. Ext. P-16 and Ext. P-1 7  
w-!re also distributed. He had seen the sticker/pamphlet� Ext. P-5 and Ext. P-6 were 
b�ing distributed in the said m�etin�. After the election petition was filed he handed 
over the aforesaid exhibits to Smt. L�lh1impuii thereafter, he said that he handed over 
those materials to respondent No. I after a week of the aforesaid campaign. Ext. 
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fl·] conw;ns the symbol of Congress (l), In cross-examin<., j i l'l1 this Vvi1liC:;� �tated that he W.:b �lUd.::rground fur some time and -was ,also arreSled In conneciion with the 
�lUbush or the Lt. Governor. He came overground and JoiJie�; .Mizoram Congress Jll the year 1972. He was �Iect�d as a viUagc council membl:i \)1' Congrt:,� (I). j n  1 976 there was peace, a�cord I n  Ml�oram. After the accord v/,� � reached Mr. La!dcngn became the ChIef MlI1hter. He dJd not remember the year but he was elected as a m�mbcr or the vi llage council on MNF ticket. He wns not :, member of the l\lN F  party but a-; h e  ,was eie7ted as a member of the vi llage counci! <.111 .MNF ticket people 
were under the impressIOn that he belonged to I'vIN F. He i't,rlLcr stated that he did 
not me�t \-lr. Rosaligliana after the said meeting. Smti. Thail",idmi \vas the P.c. Par­
ty candidate. Evcnthough the Mizo National Union was n(�t :-.0 popular his name 
was L:rlthlengjiana, He did not mcei .Mr L:llthIengliana beJ(\i"c or after the meeting. Except the peti tjoner Lalhlimpujj he did not hand over the ekct ,on materiais of Cong­
res:, (f)  to any other candidate. About one week after the meeting l\-Jrs. Lalhlimpuii, 
the MNF candidate came to his village and he told her about the Congress meeting 
and also about the distribution of the documents. She ashe; to hand over those 
docilments. 1\1r. Rosangliana and Smti . A .  Thansiami. He h,;nded over the docu­
ments to Mrs. Lalhlimpuii did not ask him anything. He toll :  her that he had gone 
through the document and some of them were good. This wi t ness also stated tha1 
there were good thin£;$ in the said documents. Those good things were that a family 
who did not have a government servant in the family would be paid Rs. l O,OOOj-. I t  
was mentioned that a Christian Government would be formed i f  voted t o  power. He 
also stated that he received the election manifesto of MNF. Hov.ever, he could not 
recollect any of them. A copy wdtten as manifesto (X) shov,1l to PW. The w itness 
stated that he did not receive any document like (X). He dJd lwt receive the mani­
festo o f  PC PJrty. Except what was wtitten in" Congres5 ( I )  Manifesto he did not 
remember \vhat was written in the manifesto of other political party. This ",itness 
again stated that he was a membcl' of the Congress party. He ldt Congress and then 
joined i\iNF and returned as a MNF candidate in the v i l hlge Panchaynt . He also 
appears· to be an interested witness because he could only remember the manifesto 
and other election materials as proved by the petitioner hut i t  is  strange that though 
he was given the manifesto and other election materials of nth( r pnrtics he could not 
recognise. He "did not even remember who gave what mntcl·j ; " I 5 .  Fronl this it will 
not be safe to acc--ept the evi dence of this witness regarding ! h • .' distrirut;on of the 
election materials as addllced by the petitioner. 

62.  PW-Il, Vanhllawm'l is another witness for the petit : ! )n,.;r \vho attempted to 
p;'()V� th:.;: distribution of the offendi ng election materials Ext" P-l  to P-6. In his �vi­
dence he statGc1 that !VIr RosanQ:liana was a Congress (I) candic:<JIC and Smt. Ll lhl lffi­
pul.! was a candidate from :\-INF. There was Congress (I) n-:('cling in his viI/age du­
ring election. During the campajgn Mr. Rosangliana aJdre��(d the public. He w�s 
pr�seilt in t lrct 1l1f)eting. He stated th:it returned candida tc· "\"!r. Rosan21 iana distn­
b:_lt�d election materials, n:l1ncly, Exts P-l  to P-6. Simibr cinCUlllent<; lik� P-l to 

P-6 wcrl: distributed during the meeting. He had not seen [ ,\". P-4. Dunng door 
tu door -: l'u:nign he did not receive any document. He recci\uJ :·hc copies of the afore­
'Said dO";:J1TIr?nts in the meeting. He knew Congress (I) symbol was 'Hanel ' . Ext P-l 
contains t1.1e SJid symbol . In his cross examination he st��ted tj l�t the public me,etj�g: 
of Congress (I) was held at ZelTIabawk. The meeting WflS hl'L� on 1 3. 1 :89. He .dlc 
not know if MNF held any meeting. He could not say whether PC Party organIsed 

auy meeting. He did 'not know whether PC Party had any offIce in hi s  village. He 

• 

• 

• 
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also did not receive any document of manife.s�o from the MN� par�.y. He r�ceivC'd 
only from Congress (1). He kne� that .�etltlOner Smt. �lhhI!�puJ1 . He dJ.�t nol 
receive any paper from the el�ct1on petltI?ner Smt. Lalhhmpull . . He alsu Old n�)l 
remember when PC Party candidate went for door to door campaign. H� also �l� 
not remember when MNF Party candidate went for door to door campaJgn. 1 hIs 

• • witness also cannot be relied upon and the evidence adduced by this witnt�s <:annot 
prove byond d.oubt that it was the first respondent or his ag�nl Of his j"t:.l rty distributed 
those election materials. 

63. RW-l ,  Rosangliana is the 1st respondent- returned candid�1.te. In his eviden-
� ce he stated that he went to the constituency and met the eminent people, relatioIl:', 

work�rs of the party and other people requesting them LO help him in the election and 
,-.A. vote for him and also to help him to contdct their friends. He staied that in hi:-, 

.. GOllstiw;ncy there was a Block Congress Commitlcc. The Bk:l.:k Congress 
C .. Hnmitteo.:: dire;:;ted its units to work for him and J.lso dirtcted the \\Of­
kers. Tn:.! w0 rkers distributed election materials Hke pamphlets, sticker�, 
banners, posters, caps which were published by AICC and MPCC. He diu 
not hold any public meeting in any of the viHages during his election ca;np�lign. 
During entire election campaign he did not hold any meeting. He also denied that 
MPCC (I) published materials as shown in Ext. P series. It was llot a fact that h� ,ted. 
his pany made any appeal to the electorate on the groun� of religion. The evidence 
of respondent No. 1 is a total denial. 

• 
• 

• 

• 

64. RW-2, Mr. C. Lalrinpuia also stated that the respondent No. 1 distributed 
• paJuphlets, election materials stickers, banners, caps which were received by MPCC 

(1) to the voters. These election materials were in Mizo language which he read i.H1d 
understood. During his election campaign he mostly worked in Zemabawk. He 
saw IVlr. Rosangliana, their candidate during election campaign. Mr. Rosangliana 
met prominent persons, sport lovers, etc. This witness was shown Ext. P series. He: 
said that they never distributed the election materials like Ext. P Series. From eviden­
ce of the witnesses for the petitioner and of the 1st respondent, it appears that the 
petitioner's witnesses have not been able to prove the distribution of the offending 
materials like Ex.t. P-l to P-6 series, beyond reasonable doubt. On tbe other band 
the respondents have denied the distribution of those materials. Therefore, in my 

opinion, it will not be safe for this Court to hold that the 1 st respondent, his agents Or 
his party ever distributed the offending election materials like Ext. p� 1 to P�6 ,eries 
beyond reasonable doubt. On the other hand. the respondents have denied the dis­
tribution of those materials. Therefore, in my opinion, it will not be safe for this 
Court to hold that the 1st respondent, Iris agents or his party ever distributed the off­
ending ele�tion materials like Ext. P-1 to P-6. After considering the evidence of 
the witnesses for the petitioner as well as for the 15t respondent. in my opinion, the 
petitioner failed to prove beyond doubt that the 1st respondent i.e, the returned 
candidate by himself or by his agent Or by his party distributed those materials and 

.. made religious appeal in public meetings. 

65. Election petition Nos. I I (G), 12(0), 1 3(0), 1 7(0), and 21(0) of 1989 1 will 
take it at later stage. Also I will take up election petition No. 10(0), 19(0) and· 20 
(0) of 1 989. 
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66. ELECTION PETITION NO. 14(G) OJ- In, 

(J.Kapthianga VS. C.L.Ruala and others) 

. ' In tl�is de�tJul� pe�i i.il.ll: the .electi�n PditlOn.�l exa��ed I.) witnesses inc11.Wi1.i4: 
petitIOner himself. .PW-), J .Kapthianga IS tne eleUlOl1 petItIOner. Petitioner durin" 
his election campaign between 3 1 . 1 2.XI:> to 1 9 . 1 .8Y dl:., t l lOUled eledlOll matc;rials pall1� 
p�le�s, leafJ�ts, slicker.s contallling religious appe�b L!H(�ugh the constituency. He) 
d tstnbuted .tne aforesaid e�ecuon lIlatenals 1ll pUbilc J llccung. He was not present III 
lhose meetmgs. He was 1l1formed about the dl:.tnbLUlon of the aforesaid election 
materials containing the reiigious appeals by the three \Oh.'rs, namely, (1) Mankima 
from Lungdar t.lC,l, ( 2 )  Ch hawnliana from Kha\,,. ldll�,n!:·_ alld (3) Mr.Laloinpuia from .. 

N . Vanl:uphai. Tile dec (Jon materials were gih:n to !lun by the aforesaId vo s. 
He had aiso aili1-::x,;d th� aforesaid materials aiong \\i� ii  .i:.nglish transiation the_JJIl 
wilh his ejection pdi11011. On g0111g through the election nlalenals .t.e found that those 
lUlterials contained rciigio us appeals to th� voters. Regarding holding of election 
i11�.:: ti i1g by til,': 1 :; 1  r;:"pand..::nt and distribution of the election materials like P- l to 
P-5 s;.:ri!!s iL! c;ldced Ulat 1st respondent made eieulOn campaign from 3 1 . 12.b!ol to 
1 9 .  1 .  89 addr�3si:1g various public meetings in tIlt following constituencies : 
( I )  Kiuwllilung, (2) N .  Vanlaiphai, (3) E.LullgJar, (4) Sailulak, (5) Leng 
(6) Pi:e" (7) Lungkawlh , (8) Sialsir, (9) .,lualcheng (10) Chekawn, 
(1)  BawkUang and (12) Lungchhuan. He s1u\vi that the 1st respondent 
addr..:!ssed public meetings, street corner meetings and canvassed door to door 
in the aforesaid places . On 1 1 . I .H9 the 1st re�pll! l l.k!nt held a meeting at Kha. 
lailung village, Bangia 'v'eng, l\1izoram. On that he \\u:, not present and a voter name'" 
Iy, Chh,l\vnliana informed him. On 6. 1 .89 also the 1 st rl�spondent held meeting at 1 0 :  
30 a.m. before a n  Iludienl:c oj' about 50 persons a t  LUllgdar 'E'. Election petitioner 
WaS Hot present in the said meering. He was informed by a voter, namely. Mankima.t 
Respondent No. 1 also addressed a meeting on 6.l .S9 at about 'I p.m. in the M.E. 

School of Norrh Vanlaiphai village before an audience; df about 40 persons. Before 
addressing the meeting the 1st respondent himself di:itri buted the audience the above 
mentioned materials. He was also not present. He gnt the copies of the afore l 
eleo::tion m':lterials from the aforesaid voters. Haying gune through the election H�dM 
terials he foune! th,-i t  those contained offending sldterltCnts. In cross-examination 
he -further stated that all those voters named by him rC�lorted to him only afttr the 
e lection was over. Petitioner had no personal knowic(:ge. He carne to know from 
his witnesses. They reported 'to him after the election :.;1 Aizawl Bazar and Treasury 
Square in Aizawl town . He did not remember the dates. All of them reported seM 
parateiy. Probably, they reported to him after tI week. Mankima came after a 
week and reported to him. They reported the same l hmg at different -dates that the 
1st re:;pondent adc;tressed public meeting making religious appeal and also distributed 
election materials like Ext. P series. Witnesses Ldmachhuana and Lalnghakliana 
reported about the formal release of the, election matenals by Mr. Lalthanhawla at 
Vanapa Hall, Aizawl. They reported to him at Aizawl . He did not remember the 
date, place where and why they reported. They came separately. None 0' the 
party member reported to him. He had seen some- local newspapers about the J release of election materials by Mr. Lalthanhawla. He did not know the nameS of 
those papers. This witness, i .e . the election petitioner it is clear that the election p eti­
tioner did not see or- any_ election meeting held by the 1 st respondent. He' also did 
not wi-tness the distribution of the election materials at Va napa Hall by the' Party Pre· 



sid\mt LaIt&1nlUMflr. He WI!S re'pOl'leC by the mttle"sses � bS /tijn at varl�ils 
time�. TIie <!ate I!ftd I'l� abtl· he- did Il'ot re_lit" lie 01l1t �e'Jltbered tl'ie- dale 
of lioldiwg the elec!Wn by the COngre�r b\jf he di4' not te:lnel!i� Ilte' d;tte :fnd' p18:ce 
wilen ... Was te'(1O\'ted'. He W$ al�/)' lIof there Vllten tII'esll" Witnesses. Tills Wlfness 
smt'ed ttutt tlie' "'nne", .. , I11e-f lihIt' m varionS Places'. lfowever, h� Cbuld trot me the 

• •  mtIIIe or the pl'aces'. He' further stated< thtt tIi. JI1<Iterntls VIeri!' given to Mn a1'ter tile 
r�"'fto of tlie eleetioo wa.; over. FI'OI\\ tile e-vi\leru:e of t\1is' wftl\ess, if appears tht he 
had DO �on"J knowledge about tho distribuf!0'lr of the ptfutdhi'g attieles and aleo 
the reIijious aWe!!'1 made lD tile public meetJng, 

• 
• 

• 

• 

61. P'W-f, M1Iltlrima attempted to prove that the' Is! respoMnt had addressed 
public meetiRg and made religious appeal and a'lso' distribute<f the p"",r�Jef' Jilf Ext. 
P'-I' t'!' P--6· eont'aiIl;,'g oil\,ltdi'll\ statements. Itr his evidence' lie- .stat,d' that I.e "as 
" calltYatoF. He kllew the peti!'!oner as well a. the list t�spondelit. The' 1st res­
pu"d� held ek'dion· meeting at village Rundar Fast at abqut 16:311 a'.III'. on 6.1.89 
in' presence' of a'l><>ut 50, person\;. He' stated' that bel'dre address;n-g the public meetillg 
tile Is� respcnd<'I\t distribut'ed some b\>o'ltlets iI!' 1'he said' me!'tlng. He was also given 
!fIe of_SOld election Materials by !'he' lsI' respOlldent. f:1tts. P� r, P-2, 1'-4, P-18, 
P'-I9' alld P-24 were similar to !hose e'lecl'ion materiill:; wHich were distributed. ll'e 
did "'" remember all' what lie said' but he r"membered' !'hat 1\0 ,;ti\! about t'he fornut­
ti"ft of a CIli'istiaB State and paymont of Its 10,000/- to each hlmsehold and trip to 
Hlely· land and a190 distribution of !'ext book in the seliool in conformity with' Chris­
tian' doetriue . He received the al'o�said eh,etion materials' di�t(ib'\lted' by the 1st re,­
pond .... t in the aforesaid meeting. FIe handed over the aforesaid election matenals 

� to the petitioner Me week a!'ter !lie declaration' of election result: T�is willi." fur­
ther s!'ated' tllat in the meeting tile 1st respondi:ftt himself B""O him' the election mate­
rials. PIe' could' 1I0t say wHo were !he o!'her people of Congri!iji! in the said meeting 
field' fly liim, Re' also cbUlll' not say if there were other COI1�S workers from his 
'Jin. along with' the 1st responlfe-nt in. tll.e said' meetlng. m. ftlr'tller stated that Ii\: 
<lllulif nor say whether tile Congress (I) workers of his' villag'" webt til his hbuse I'dr 
doer to d""f. campaign. 1'llis is the ""llI\:llte (>f this' witlles,,-, :f{ow going' through' 
the evidence of this witness, in my opinion} it' wilt He' difl!cult tb' a�cept tliat tlie 1 sf res­
pondilnt distributed' the election I\\at'erials like Exr I'�I ('0' 1"-6 series and' also made 
religion", aJlpeals b�au.., from the evidence if is not proved' beydlld douht that the rst 
respetldent was adtlressing a' meeting' in as mueh· as this witn,ess only' could' remm. hr 
the date and the name of the 1st respondent who distributed tile materinls but he did' 
not remember any other things. He is also a Witness similar to the other case. 
Therefore, it will not be safe to come to the conclusion that the lsI resronde!)t or his 
age-lIfer'His party· was gtJilty of making religidus appi:aJ'ih tile meetings and distribu· 
tion' Of tlie nlaterials IIlte Ext. P' series. ' 
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No. 1 while addressing the public meeting explained about the election materials and 
appealed to the audience to vote for him to form a Christian Govt. and arrange for 
pilgrimage to Holy Land, payment of Rs 10,000/- cash to each family members. He 
received the aforesaid , election materials distributed by the 1st respondent in the said 
meeting. He informed the petitioner about the distribution of the aforesaid election 
materials and addressing the public meeting by the 1st  responsdent about one week 
after the election result was declared. The election was held on 21st of January, 1989 
and the results were declared on 23rd January, 1989. The election materials which 
he received in the aforesaid meeting were kept with him. After a week of the election 
result was declared he went to Aizawl Bazar alongwith those election materials in his 
pocket. At Aizawl Bazar he met the petitioner and then he asked him why he lost the 
election when he told him that because of the appeal made by those election materials 
the petitioner had lost election. On being asked by him he handed over the copies 
of the election materials. In his cross examination he stated that the meeting took 
place at a place which was a distance of about 1 K.M. from his house. He did not 
belong to any political party. He did not contest any village council election. He 
also could not say whether at the said meeting there were any person of his viHage. 
Mr Lalkunga came to his house at about 8 p.m. one week before the election. He 
told Mr Lalkunga that the Respondent No. 1 had distributed the election materials 
in the public meetings held by him and also made appeal on the ground of religion. 
Mr Lalkunga said nothing. MNF meeting took place at 8 P.M. but he did not re­
member the date. He did not report to anybody else about the distribution of the 
election materials except the petitioner and Lalkunga, but he read out those materials 
to th� visitors or-his house. This is a witness he said thai he V.,.',iS present on the date 
of public meeting he1d by the 1st respondent. He received those materials but he 
kept it  with him. He met the petitioner about a week after the results were declared 
and he hand-ed ov�r .those materials which he carried alongwith him. Now from the 
evidence it appears that he by chance met the petitioner in Ai" awl Bazar. At least the 
evidence does not indicate that there was a prior commun. ':ttion to the petitioner 
that this witness would meet him. There was no reason for h i l l ,  to carry the election 
m:tterials like P-l to P-6 containing offending articles. Bisid�s, i�:, did not belong 
to the place. His village is about a K.M. away. This witness did not give any rea­
son why he visited the said place on that day. TherefoTc, he :'!�;teared to be a chance 
witness. Besides, it is rather strange that he would carry ire election materials like 
P-l to P-6 and on that day carry to Aizawl Bazar where he mel the election petitioner 
and 4anded over. From his evidence it will be difficult to accept that the 1st respon­
dent ·held the meeting as stated. 

6::>. P.W. 9 L'lldinpuia also spoJke about the distribution of the election materials. 
He Slid that he was a President of the Village Council of "[\\orth Vanlaiphai village 
during the time of election. The 1st respondent came to his village on 6.1.89 and held 
an '!le:tion meeting. He further stated that before holding the meeting the 1st res­
PJncleat distributed certain election -materials like Ext. P- I ,  P-2, P-4, P-18, P-)9 
and P-24. He further stated .in ,h�s 9ross-examination that he did not remember on 
what day the meeting was_called. The former Chief Minister Brig. T. Saito was the 
PCP candidate. He did not know if-there was any meeting called by PC party, before 
the election� There were door to door campaign by the workers of the political -par­
ti�s . .  He did not tell Mr Kapthianga; election petitioner about the distribution .of the 
eJ�c�iqnjnaterials by re�pon4ent No. 1 when hC 'called the mee.ting, but he' 4id , not 
re��tJ).ber whether meetmg was called befor.e or �after the meetmg called by Respon� 

• 

• 

• 
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dent No. 1 .  He also did not tell the MNF workers who came to his house during door 
to door campaign about the distribution of the e/eCtiOll materials. He gave to the 
potitioner the election materials issued by the Congress (I) on th� request of the. peti­
tioner though he possessed, it. The eVIdence of this wlt�ess also� In my OpInIOn, IS n�t 
sullioient to prove tllat the 1st respondent held.the eIecnon meeting on the date menn-

• • tioned ,by him and ne was present because in his evidence he stated that he did not 
remember aliY other meeting he ever attended. 

70. 1st responde.lt examined three witnesses. namely, himself. Lalhranga and 
Vanlallana. 

Under the circumstances in this case,also it is not possible to hold the 1st respon­
dent - returned candidate was guilty. of corrupt practice . 

• • 

• 
• 

• 

• 

ELECTION PETITION NO. 15(0) OF 1989 

B. Lalthlengliana VS. Liansuama and others. 

71.  In this case also the petitioner examined P.W. 6 Zaiawithanga, P.W. 7 Samuela 
and P.W. 8 S.F. Aichhunga gave evidence regarding holding of meeting and distribu­
tion of election materials, namely, Ext. P-l to P-6 and the Ist respondent - returned 
candidate's statement addressing public meeting making reijgious appeal. Now it 
is to be seen whether the petitioner has been able to 'prove the allegation of holding 
meeting. addressing the said meeting by the returned candidate respondent No. 1. 

• m1.kin,g· religious appeal and also distributing election materials like P-} to P-6. 

72. PW. 6 Zaiawithanga was a businessman. He knew bo1;,11 the petitioner as well 
the 1st respondent. He stated that the 1st respondent addressed public meeting and 
distributed election manifesto, plrnphlets, leaflets, stickers, etc. himself at village 
West Pharleng on 18.1 .89 at 12 Noon in presence of 100 persons. He had also recei­
ved election manifesto, pamphlets, leaflets from the 1st respondent in the sJid meeting. 
He had read the aforesaid election materials in _which it . was. written that ."Christian 
Government would be formed" and the text books of the schools would be based on 
Christian doctrinle. After distribution of the election materials in the said meeting 
the respondent addressed the public by explaining the policies of Congress (I) party 
and also about the formation of Christian Government and publishing of text books 
based, on Christian doctrine. He also stated that Ext P-l, P-2, P-4, P-18, P-19 
and·P�24 wer� materialS: like that of the materials distributed before the meeting. He 
could identify those materi�ls -in , the Court. He received those materials and read 
those. Immediately after the: election was over the petitioner visited the ,constituencey 
at that time he handed over those to him. In his cross-examination he stated that he 
was ,a Headmaster 'of Pharleng High School for some time but,he resigned because he 
found the business was more profitable . .  He was holding � degree of Ba�helor of Arts 
and· Education. Earlier he was not in any po1itical party, 'but for last six months he 

• had ,been taking keen interest in MNF party, but still he wat! oPl a member of MNF 
part}'.' He was not only interested in MNF party but, also 1)011' ;ntfrested in politics. 
He ",as ,interested in politics and' willing te> join. any party whi$ ilr interesled ;n the 
development of Mizoram and free from corruption. There V/J!Ii. no political patty .in 
Miioran:a. which was mterested for. th� development of MIZ� and free frdttt cot­
ruption. However, he could not gay whether· lillY Gther.' ,political pocrty .'lteid any 
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marina· He know ... Iy abOllt one mee!<iDg be1i by the 1st r.sl'0ll"""1 "bid'> Ire 
attmdod. He distribDtlllll the el>leli<m mateIilois and showing lire sticler lle said that tim, v.<Oul'" f ...... Christi .... Go ... mmem. He did oot remember the dat .. on w!lich' 
tlke elllc1lioo J'I'Iitioner waited hi. -.illage afte1 lbe cleclaration of the reo"lt. 'Jhe cle.­
t.ian. pmiti.,.,,,,, visiteO his Ioouse after tbe ete<tiun. However. he dId not re_,"" 
tlo dale. ExL X-l 10 X-6 weN the election materials "hielt h. p<cei.ed from Ibe • • 
Respondent No. I and handed over to the petitionop. The ,.spoOO<ont whlko lIi.fri. 
buting the election materials stated that if Congress (I) Government is formed then 
it will be formed in the Chri.1Iian. Jl<incipios. H", <iIid !\.Ot rememb« llile I st respondent 
ever said that he would work for the poor people in Mizoram if voted to powur. T)iI;e 
election petitioner visited his house earlier because he knew him personally and he 
CMIlC' to his !\otiS¢' without kIlO-willS that there- were election mate:r:ialt inl M h0u�e. 
This witness also stated that he attended only O'M meet.ing . Though· ll}r@P& were 
meetings held by other parties he could not say anything about the other meetings. 
He himself stated that he was not interested in pOlitics at the time when the election 
was held. If that was so, what was his reaSOR' of ms· attending election m63tirng ooly 
of Congress (I) and not other parties. From' this' it appears that this is arrothe'r 
witness who tried to support the election. petitioocII regarding the di6tJTibutti(Jn of the 
election materials and the religious appeal made by the I S1 respondent. He also 
stated, that the petlitiomtr cant@' 10 his hause alter the' election was over ana! by the way 
he- ask.d. why he IgBt his oI"cti"D and thon he produced the .lectioT> materialS. This 
p&I't of evidbnoe is also; not so· strong to bring home the charge ojf dist1Jliblition of 
election mat<l<ial. like Ext. pq to 1"-6 and making religious apperu. If he was- l\i" 
independent per ..... ' having in""'"st in' any party and not affiliated to any poIit!ical 
party it will be dill\cult to accept his vOl'sion that he on' j attended 1it. mooting of. tbe 
petitioner that t00' h.u 14member the dare. But in· respel � of othtus he sid not remem- "" .. 

ber anything. On the basis of this witness also it is no,. possible to come to the cpn­
elusion· aoout tho dlotl'ibution· 0f materials· and· making religious appeals \;y the 1st 
"'''!'Ondent i.&. tho _.nedi cantlid.t •. 

J 

EILECFI@N I>E'l'ITION NO. I6(Gj 01> 19S9 

Laltllankaia vs. 1': Lalbiah' and' others 

73. In this cas� regarding tb. distribution of tbe election material. Ilke J!xt.. 1'-1 
10 � containing' offending statements making religious appeal the petitioner' did not 
give a pGsitiw- evidemce. His evidence is that he was reported that! the 1st respondent 
hold Il\l>eting whore he distributed' the election materials like Ext. P.l series and' also 
made some reHgi0us- appeal. This witness· was not personally present in' those. tlwo 
meet'uS" m.ntioned' above. He was told by 1.almuanawma about tbe meeting beld 
on 20.1.89\ Therefore, his evidence is only. what was reported. by. the witfteS8es. 
Regarding holding of meeting by the I st respondent; distribution of election materials 
and' making rdigious appeal petitioner- examined only one witness i .e. P;W;. 8 • 
I;almuanawma. I'n his .vid.n .... · PeW. 8 stat.d that he knew about th" ele.tioR' cam' 

·pllisn of Congress (I)'in hi. vinage. In the af'lemoon of 20th January., 1'9119 a • 

mooring was held by tile (F;o .. gr .... (I) candldlrte in the bouse of Thangrualk, 'FIIere 
W6r� a.bout 104)..1:S01 porsons in' die said meeting. The announoement was.' lila*" in 
the said:maetlng tbrough'pnbllc anROuncomeDt system for the purpo" IJ1 IO'Udl..,.al!<w. He did not- kOO'W wfjo. mad .. tho announcement. Me was,presentm:the nlOl!lh\g. 
lilt ...... . tamd,th"' oame thing'a. other wl_ .... in otber election·pntitioDO'had stBllld. 
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The evidenee of this witness also, in'my opinion, is not enougb to bpld tbat the ekcticn 
petitioner actually distributed ele¢tion materials because in gen,efal elFction of 1989 
several parties were in tbe fray . .  All the parties camp';tigned !\lid li�ld public meetings, 
gave speecbes, dlstribufed pamphlets and otber election materIals. He emphatIcally 
said tbat he did not remember any of such meetings of distribl!tion.. This witness also 
cannot "" relied. upon because he was speaking as if he was picked up by the election 
petitioner just to give evidence. Therefore, in my view, tltis witness 'also. cannot be 
relied on to come to a de�nite Gonc1usions regard�g the cor.ruJlt 'practice of distril:u­
ting election materials like P serie� contairring offending. materials arid also making 
speech before the public with religious appeal. In view of the above, thIS witness also 
cannot be accepted . 

• 

• ELECTION PETITION NO. l 8(G) OF 1989 

F. Aithanga vs. Lalthanhawla and others. 

74. In this case also the petitioner examined eight 'witnesse� including himEclf. 

75. P.W.6 Thaugsanga spoke about the meeting held by the 1st respondent and 
regarding the distribution of the election materials, namely, Ext. 1'-1 to F·t and other 
materials in the said meetings and making religious appeal to the voters. Similarly, 
P.W.7. C. Ropianga spoke about the meetings and distribution of the election 
materials. He stated that on 10.1.89 the respondent No.1 addressed a public meeting 
at noon in village Lokicherra before the audience of 150 perSOD$ . .  Before addressing 

• the public meeting he himself distributed election materials tb the audience and 
explained the contents of those election materials to them. He stated that he would 
be able to identify those election materials. Thereafter he stated that Ext. P-I, P-2, 
P-4, P-7, P- 8, P-IO were materials like those materials which were distributed ty the 
1st respondent. Though he did not remember at all what the repondent said to the 
public in the meeting. However, he did remember that he said that if he was voted 
to power he would arrange pilgrimage for the Mizos to the Holy Land. He also 
said that the school text book would be reformed and revised on the basis of Christian 
teachings. He met the petitioner at his house after about two weeks of the election. 
Petitioner came to his house to know the reason as to why he lost the election. He 
told him that he lost the election because of the election materials like Ext. P-l , P-2, 
P-4, P-7, P-8 and P-IO. He gave copies of the aforesaid election materials to the 
petitioner. The petitioner further asked him who were the other persons who would 
be having copies of those election materials. He said that the persons who attended 
the meeting would be having copies of those. , 

. In his cross-examination he stated that he did not ""long to' any political party. 
The other political parties like MNF and PCP also held election meetings in his village. 
MNF held election meeting on 15.1 .89. He attended the meeting of MNF as it 

• near to his house . PCP also held the meeting near his house on ' 13.1 .89. Mr. 
Aithanga spoke about the corruption and development in the said meeting. He did 
not distribute any election materials. He could not say the number of population 
and voters in IDS village. He also stated that he knew the MNF workers of his village. 
He did not tell the MNF workers in his village that they had lost election ""cause 
of the election materials distributed by Respondent No. I .  He only knew 
Mr. Rohmingthanga had got election materials. He Could not say about the others. 



• •  76. P. W· 7 �DQ.!"il/g rll.�ng� in hi! pyid.�lJc.e !1;lted .tllal Ihe I� re�{>'IIWpI)). a.d<!���s.e,d a pufili� W'i,eti,!g In th� e!,e.ctipn Djl1c,e -'itualed 'It LDJ<i.clwrr� b,e)prf �p 
al'.fhen,,!, r( 1St). !:I� il1d ll.Ot �em.eiiil?�.r ,exa.cUy w/:till ,the respon.�ent No· I sai,d ill th-e �ald l1).!'eurg, bpt h� dl�rfil)Ul.eil �1.ecti,Dl). "'anif�!I,o, tlll.eratio n Jos�il al)g Dth.\'f .i",,/"40i!. 
Aft,er :dJstf))lUtlng t!)e arores�](1 mat.eria\s h.e �ddr!,!.le!l tbe p�bl/c me,etip¥. t!/.ll I!i respondent while addressing a public meeting requested to vote COQ.gn�:�s rQf fQr:Ql}pg a Christian Government and for a visit to Holy land. Ext. P- l ,  P-2, -P-4, P-7, P-8 and 
P-IO were similar to those election materials distributed by the 1 st respondent in the 
said meeting. He .read out th� afor�sf1id ,el�,cti?p m.��erials to hjs fri.ends. About a 
week after the electIOn the petitIOner visIted hIS house. fn cross-examnination he stated 
that he did not belong to any political party. Ite �,as not intereged U, politics. He 
belonged to Lokicherra Sub-Town. The meetlOg of the Congress (I) took place at 
LQkiRhrrra S.oPfr Tqwq. Ife 4ilf nQt rememb.�r F��Ftly the date when h,e n",d Dul the 
electIOn materials of the 1st respondent to hIs friends. This witness further stated 
tp,a,t h� di� qD1 atferd ��y J1leetip� .of fpe othe�ar!ieS like pcr. Ife did Q.Qt remem­
\ler l)"te �ate PI) whi,ch t e can<lldate lleld tbe . eet/ng. He alsp liJp no; go III th,e 
njeepngs either. lj",e di, nq! �npi" wh,lher t !'  IW'NF or pcp gjstril)utFd � ��tipn 
1Jli'teriills ��. he did 'lflt allend . Befqn' the elF.�tiQn he attend.ed qp/y qlle J1leelin& 
).e. tn." IneFllpg .of 11j� C8pgress !I). ;\.11 tlle poiJtlcaj PWly wo"kcrsl lj�mely, CQIl�reSS 
(I), Jl.):NF �q4 r�p Fall}e'tD hIS h,DP\!' (Dr c�nva�1i/!I!' During <lopr to doqr Cam­
Rai�n Cf!ljJlr,e�s m Jl'Pr�rs f/i4 nqt glye ,aqy m�;,eri�ls to h is ho�s.e. Th,ep' were • 

CP/lWesS, IllN F �»f/. pcI' wqrkers In his vIlla:g" . lie also could not say wJwther there 
\fas �NF wDrkers If! tlje �qdieljc.e III the meel1ng h�lfl by he reSROm!ent NI). 1 .  
�qrlF .of his viJ!ffi:er� aftenPrcJ thl' Jlleeting but h, did pot knG " wljD they Were. These 
tl'jD �ifm'sses Q'l1y spo�e �pp�t .one meeting 1)e14 b¥ 14e 1st " IPDn<l�ql· Tll!lu�h 
t .er� were s�¥erat'lJH'elipg� helfl py other <lilfereqt pQlitical partie�, ��rnejYI rtc? �nd 

F. It "ID)M qe flifljcf.'It tD aCCePt the !,viilI'IW!' Rf these 1 \\0 witnesses a Sfl· frpJ1l t '�ir evi<len,�, ir 'liY' QPi'nipn, it i� n6t pr9yed ttl�t till' respond snt Np: I b¥ hlfll�elf.pr 
t r!lp�h hll �gen! �r 11¥ his Po�.rty d,sfnlluted thpse !,Iecllon mat�paJs. Ri'&aqljng 
t, <; evllj�nc" .of the eIec\lpn Pl'tillon!,r h,ullself 4e Rilly �Iated lhat Ije w�s r!,pprf�\l lll' 
wltlle�se� fli�t the I�t re,ponilent held those meelmgs. Consldenn� all lhe !'Yjf1enq' 
ill reg�rd to Ihe gistq!l\lfjop Qrlll!' ,1ectiP'l ma!i'riij)s, ill my opinipn, I11ftt tpl' pet!IIDJ!!lf 
lias not qeen �b/e tf' PrAye tpe Fas. PHypnd dQlj�! that lhe reSrO�!l!:nt ND. I IS &4ilty 
of 'dlstrip�iing eI'lFlipn flWeria)s perofe tnI" public ffiijl<ing rcliglO4S ijPPeal. 

. 

ELECTION PETITION NO. 12  (G) OF 1989 

t. �Q�ama' vl. Z�I�Wmq �n,d Ptp", 

E�JlCTlQl'f PETITION NO. II (G) !=1f 19&� 

f9,ilHilih�ra y�. y�jY�\1g� aljA 0ltlHr& 

lO'�ECTIQN PHITIPN J'iQ. 13  (ql Qf 198� 

E,:�ml1\'n�aq�a ys. A.'lflriii- ��iq�fliaq� ;in" p\IWrs 
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Hrangthansanga vs. Saikapthianga and others 

ELECTION PETITION NO. 21 (G) Qf 19,1l11 

K. Lalroman� ,v§. !Mhut� �jl4 !ltIj§r� 

:E1'�(95 

77. /J;l �}J. #lese l1yO' Iii""! /Y.w,y jt)\� "",_n wjl/lMIM bIMe. �Il _om¥,d. TJa.e 
C9ffi<ff!fIfl ��"" � l llitYIl i'-� �_, �t lhjl. �qf II1&' ;lidgnlent r�­
dlJl,i JIf/'lYuj! !'f iji, �IAAIHIR !llw.erml� ej�. R�g!llllliP1 Wit J)JI. §{ �SD ._iIlls 
ana maktng religious appeal there are no evidence whatsoever. Therefor�.. I beW 
that in those cases also petitioners failed to prove that respondents No. I or their 
agents or their party distributed the election materials and made religious appeal to 
the voters. 

ELECTION P13TlTION NO. 10 (G) OF 1989 

Lianhmingthanga vs. Lalthanhawla and others. 

ELECTION PETITION NO. 19 (G) OF 1989 

S. Lianzuala vs. Zoramsangliana and others 

• ELECTION PETITION NO. 20 (G) OF 1989 

• 

------------------

L. Ngurchhina vs. Rokamlova and others 

78. The counsel Mr. Bhattacharyya and his juniors who originally appeared had 
withdrawn from the cases with due notice to the election petitioners. Thereafter the 
petitioners did not take any fresh step in these election petitions. No evidence (except 
of common witnesses) has been adduced. Therefore, in these petitions also the peti� 
titioners failed to prove that the respondents - returned candidates made public speech 
appealing to the voters on the religious ground and also distributed election materials 
like Ext. P series to the voters. They having total1y failed, the ground of distribution 
of election materials like P series making appeal to the voters has totally failed . 

79. Issue Nos. 1 and 2 : In view of the above discussions I hold that in respect of 
Issue Nos . l  and 2 petitioners have failed to prove that the respondent No.1 published 
the election materials, namely, Ext. P series and circulated and distributed the same 
in their campaign, public meetings, door to door canvassing. Petitioners have also 
failed to prove that the I st respondents themselves addressed public meetings as 
alleged and distributed the election campaign literatures, namely, Ext. P series. 
These two issues are answered in the negative and in favour of respondent No. 1 .  

80. Issue l'!1I, J : In Yi�\\' of t/w fpr.etlllillll l!j�<;"�sj'l'l)� I It'll<l IMI I!!e election ma­
terials, namely, Ext. f �erj�� �Qntijin st�!�Ijl�l\IIi ilPP�iI!ilijl l9 ill4 voters to vote on the 
ground of religion amounting to corrupt practice WIthin the meaning of section ] 23 
(3). However, no ground had been proved under sub-sections (IA) (b), (2), (3A) and 
(4) of Section 123 of the Act. This issue is accordingly answered. 
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8 1 .  Issue No.4 : In view of the decision of Issue Nos. I and 2 I hold that the elec-
tions of the l st respondents in each election petition are not liable to be set aside. 

82. Issue No. 5 :  In view of the decision in Issue Nos. I ,  2 and 4 the election 
petitioners are Dot entitled to get any reHef. • • 

Accordingly, all the election petitions are dismissed. No costs. 

83. The election petitioners have filed recrimination petitions. However, at the 
time of argument the learned counsel for the petitioners did not press those. Besides, 
in view of the decisions in Issue Nos. I ,  2 and 5 no order need be passed in those 
petitions. 

D.N. Baruah, 
Judge. 
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